RESOLUTION NO. 2017-68
RESOLUTION NO. PFA-03
ORDINANCE NO.  2017-01

AGENDA

MISSION STATEMENT
"Qur team is dedicated to protecting, enhancing, and developing our rich water resources to the
highest beneficial use for Calaveras County, while maintaining cost-conscious, reliable service, and our
quality of life, through responsible management.”

Regular Board Meeting Calaveras County Water District
Wednesday, December 13, 2017 120 Toma Court, (PO Box 846)
1:00 p.m. San Andreas, California 95249

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting,
please contact the Administration Office at 209-754-3028. Notification in advance of the meeting will enable CCWD
to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Any documents that are made available to
the Board before or at the meeting, not privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure, and related to agenda items,
will be made available at CCWD for review by the public.

ORDER OF BUSINESS

CALL TO ORDER /PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. ROLL CALL

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
At this time, members of the public may address the Board on any non-agendized item. The
public is encouraged to work through staff to place items on the agenda for Board consideration.
No action can be taken on matters not listed on the agenda. Comments are limited to three
minutes per person.

3. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Jeff Davidson, President Scott Ratterman, Vice President
Terry Strange, Director Bertha Underhill, Director Russ Thomas, Director



4. CLOSED SESSION

4a CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS
Government Code §54956.8
Property: APN’s 046-019-051, 073-042-127, and 073-042-129, Valley Springs
District negotiator: Dave Eggerton
Under negotiations: price and other terms

4b CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL ~ PENDING LITIGATION
Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1) (Pending adjudicatory proceeding before
State Water Resources Control Board regarding District water rights)

4.1 REPORTABLE ACTION FROM CLOSED SESSION

5. CONSENT AGENDA
The following items are expected to be routine / non-controversial. Items will be acted upon by
the Board at one time without discussion. Any Board member may request that any item be
removed for later discussion.

Sa Approval of Minutes for the Board Meetings of November 8, and
November 21, 2017

5b Review Board of Directors Monthly Time Sheets for November, 2017

5¢ Approve to Ratify Claim Summary #549 Secretarial Fund in the Amount
of $1,406,232.44 for November, 2017
(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services) RES 2017

5d Approving Accounts Receivable Write Off of Accounts for Period of June 1
through November 30, 2017
(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services) RES 2017-

Se Approve to Eliminate Board of Directors Policy #7-Use of Old District Board Room
(Dave Eggerton, General Manager) RES 2017-

5f Approve Cost Match Commitment for Local Hazard Mitigation Plan

Cal-OES Grant Application DR-4301 RES 2017-
(Joel Metzger, Mgr. of External Affairs, Conservation, and Grants)

6. NEW BUSINESS

6a Presentation of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30,2017
by Richard & Company, LLP
(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services)

6b Discussion / Action Regarding Adoption of the Final Draft of the La Contenta
Wastewater Master Plan
(Bob Godwin, Sr. Civil Engineer/Kennedy Jenks Engineers) RES 2017-

*No information included in packet 12/13/17 Board Meeting
Page 2 of 3



6¢

6d

Discussion / Action Regarding Purchase of APN’s 046-019-051, 073-042-127,
and 073-042-129, Valley Springs, CA for La Contenta Wastewater Expansion
(Dave Eggerton, General Manager) RES 2017~

Discussion / Action Regarding Amending the FY 2017-18 CIP Budget
(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services) RES 2017-

Discussion / Action Regarding Award of Contract for Installation/Construction of
Water Pressure Regulating Station Improvements in the Jenny Lind/Rancho Calaveras
Area, CCWD CIP # 11097 RES 2017-

(Teresa Tanaka, Dir. of Operations / Charles Palmer, District Engineer)

Discussion / Action Regarding Amending the FY 2017-18 CIP Budget

(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services) RES 2017-
6e Discussion / Direction Regarding Cost of Service and Rate Design Analysis
(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services)
7. OLD BUSINESS
Nothing to report
8.% GENERAL MANAGER REPORT
9.% BOARD REPORTS / INFORMATION / FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
10. NEXT BOARD MEETINGS
Wednesday, January 10, 2018, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting
Wednesday, January 24, 2018, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting
11. ADJOURNMENT
*No information included in packet 12/13/17 Board Meeting

Page 3 of 3



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

Board of Directors

District 1 Scott Ratterman
District 2 Terry Strange
District 3 Bertha Underhill
District 4 Russ Thomas
District 5 Jeff Davidson
Financial Services

Umpqua Bank

US Bank
Wells Fargo Bank

CCWD Committees

*Engineering Committee
*Finance Committee

*Legal Affairs Committee
Executive Committee (ad hoc)

Joint Power Authorities

ACWA / JPIA
CCWD Public Financing Authority

Calaveras-Amador Mokelumne River Authority (CAMRA)

Calaveras Public Power Agency (CPPA)

Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority

Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water
Management Joint Powers Authority (T-Stan JPA)

Upper Mokelumne River Watershed Authority (UMRWA)

Other Regional Organizations of Note

Calaveras LAFCO

Calaveras County Parks and Recreation

Committee
Highway 4 Corridor Working Group

Mountain Counties Water Resources

Association (MCWRA)

Mokelumne River Association (MRA)
Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water
Mgt. JPA Watershed Advisory Committee (WAC)

Legal Counsel

Matthew Weber, Esq.
Downey Brand, LLP

Auditor
Richardson & Company, LLP

Membership**

Strange / Davidson (alt. Underhill)
Underhill / Thomas (alt. Ratterman)
Davidson / Ratterman

Davidson / Ratterman

Ratterman (alt. Dave Eggerton)

All Board Members

Strange / Ratterman (alt. Davidson)
Peter Martin (alt. Dave Eggerton)
Russ Thomas

Strange (alt. Thomas)

Davidson (alt. Strange)
All Board Members
Ratterman (alt. Thomas)

Underhill / Thomas
All Board Members

All Board Members
Peter Martin (alt. Metzger)

* Standing committees, meetings of which require agendas & public notice 72 hours in advance of meeting.

#* The 1¥ name listed is the committee chairperson.

Revised: 04/12/17
Board/Committees Listing/2017



DATE: December 13, 2017

TO:

Board of Directors

FROM: Dave Eggerton, General Manager ,ﬁ;

SUBJECT: Election of Officers

RECONMMENDED ACTION:

1.

2.

Elect President and Vice President.

The new President may choose to appoint members to the Engineering Committee,
Finance Committee, and Legal Affairs Committee (Standing Committees of the
Board). However, the new President may want to delay making the appointments
until the January 10, 2018 meeting to canvass the preferences of each Board
member for those appointments.

It is also customary at the next regularly scheduled Board meeting for the newly
elected President to make appointments to other committees and associations of
interest to the agency as well as to request a vote of the Board with regard to the
appointment of members to Joint Power Authorities (JPAs) of which the District is a
member.

BACKGROUND:

Election of Officers

Now is the time year when the Board elects its officers for the following year, the
President and Vice President.

The procedure for election of officers is as follows:

e The current President turns the meeting over to the General Manager who
facilitates the election of the new President.

o After the President is elected, the General Manager facilitates the election of
the new Vice President.

e The new President and Vice President are seated.

1/2



= Committee Appointments

As the Board is reconstituting itself, there are some other important actions that must be
taken, namely, identifying committee memberships. Some memberships are
Presidential appointments while others such as the appointment of Board Members to
JPAs are taken by action of the full Board. Pursuant to Board Policy 4060, the
President may make appointments to existing ad hoc and standing committees of the
Board for the following year and, if so desired, eliminate existing committees. Such
action must be taken no later than the Board’s regular meeting in February.

At this time, the Board President may proceed to appoint members to the Engineering,
Finance, and Legal Affairs Committees of the Board. Alternatively, and consistent with
past practice, the President may ask that each Board member submit a list of his or her
own preferences for committee and JPA appointments to the Clerk of the Board for
consideration by the President who will announce committee and other appointments as
well as recommendations for Board action on JPA appointments at the next meeting on
January 10, 2018.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

$120 per meeting, up to six (6) meetings per calendar month, as well as reimbursement
of certain authorized expenses as requested by each Board member.



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

Directors Present:

Staff Present:

Others Present:

RESOLUTION NO.
RESOLUTION NO.

ORDINANCE NO.

MINUTES

CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

NOVEMBER 8, 2017

Jeff Davidson, President

Scott Ratterman, Vice President
Bertha Underhill, Director

Terry Strange, Director

Russ Thomas, Director

Dave Eggerton, General Manager

Mona Walker, Clerk to the Board

Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services
Teresa Tanaka, Director of Operations

Peter Martin, Manager of Water Resources

Stacey Lollar, Director of HR and Customer Service

Tim Hildabrand, Cal.net

ORDER OF BUSINESS

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. ROLL CALL

201765
PFA-03
201701

President Davidson called the Regular Board meeting to order at 1:00 p.m. and led the pledge of
allegiance. All Board Members were present.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

11/08/17 Board Meeting

Page 10152



UNAPPROVED - SUBJECT TO CHANGES

3. CONSENT AGENDA

MOTION: Directors Thomas / Underhill — Approved Consent Agenda ltems:
3a, Minutes for the Board Meetings of October 4, October 11,
and October 25, 2017; 3b, Board of Directors Monthly Time Sheets
for October, 2017; and 3¢, Adopted Resolution No. 2017-65 Ratifying
Claim Summary #548 Secretarial Fund in the Amount of $1,574,004.65
for October, 2017

3a Approval of Minutes for the Board Meetings of October 4, October 11, and
October 25, 2017

3b Review Board of Directors Monthly Time Sheets for October, 2017

3c Approve to Ratify Claim Summary #548 Secretarial Fund in the Amount
of $1,574,004.65 for October, 2017

(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services) RES 2017-65
AYES: Directors Thomas, Underhill, Strange, Ratterman and Davidson
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

4, NEW BUSINESS

4a Review and Direction of the FY 2017-18 First Quarter Investment Report
(Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services

DISCUSSION: Mr. Meyer discussed the District's current cash and investment balances for the
First Quarter of FY 2017-18. He explained the changes and values of the various District accounts
and investments noting that staff continues its goal to increase short term interest earnings.
Director Underhill asked about the status of hiring an investment consultant. Mr. Meyer responded
there is nothing to report at this time. Mr. Meyer responded to questions from Board Members.

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

This item was for information only; no action was taken.

4b Designate District Voting Representative at ACWA Fall Conference
(Dave Eggerton, General Manager)

MOTION: Directors Ratterman / Thomas — Designate Director Strange as CCWD’s
Voting Representative and the General Manager as Alternate at the Fall
ACWA Conference

DISCUSSION: Mr. Eggerton indicated that the Board needs to designate a District representative
to cast its ballot for election of the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) officers at the
ACWA Fall Conference Nov. 28 through Dec. 1, 2017 in Anaheim. The Board selects a Board
Member that will be in attendance or they can designate the General Manager to cast their vote.
There was some discussion.

11/08/17 Board Meeting
Page 10153



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

AYES: Directors Ratterman, Thomas, Underhill, Strange and Davidson
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

4c Information / Discussion Regarding Update of District Employment Policies:
Section 4000 —~ Hours, Meals, and Rest Periods, and Section 7000 - Leaves
(Stacey Lollar, Director of HR and Customer Service)

DISCUSSION: Ms. Lollar informed the Board that the District Employee Policies, Section 4000 —
Hours, Meals, and Rest Periods, and Section 7000 — Leaves, have been updated and included in
the agenda package for the Board's review and comment. Director Ratterman requested Ms.
Lollar review the changes and updates to the new policies. Ms. Lollar indicated that the updated
policies have been reviewed by both bargaining units and that after full review, these and other
employee policies will be brought to the Board next year for adoption. Ms. Lollar responded to
questions from the Board.

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

This item was for information only; no action was taken.

RECESS was called at 1:20 p.m. SESSION RESUMED at 1:25 p.m.

4d Discussion / Action Regarding Approval of the Amended and Restated Eastside
Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Sustainability Agency MOU Allowing
Calaveras County to Enter as a Member Agency
(Peter Martin, Manager of Water Resources) RES 2017-66

MOTION: Directors Thomas / Ratterman — Adopted Resolution No. 2017-66
Authorizing the General Manager to sign the Amended and Restated
Eastside Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Sustainability Agency
MOU allowing Calaveras County to enter as a Member Agency

DISCUSSION: Mr. Martin discussed the current memorandum of understanding (MOU) of the
Eastside Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA), which CCWD is a
member. The Calaveras County Board of Supervisors has requested to join the GSA. An
amended and restated MOU including Calaveras County was included in the agenda package for
the Board's consideration. Director Thomas commented on the importance of the County agencies
working together and recommends moving forward. Mr. Martin answered questions from the Board
relating to the overlapping groundwater basins.

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

AYES: Directors Thomas, Ratterman, Underhill, Strange and Davidson
NOES: None
ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

11/08/17 Board Meeting
Page 10154



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

4e Update on Winter Storm Disasters - FEMA Reimbursement Projects
(Teresa Tanaka, Director of Operations)

Ms. Tanaka provided a PowerPoint presentation on the District's process in filing for disaster
assistance through FEMA. In her presentation, she illustrated the various FEMA categories of work
that would be eligible for application for reimbursement including labor and equipment costs,
contract labor, personnel and equipment rates, and the necessary detail for each item. She listed
some of the FEMA projects the District has applied for as a result of the 2017 winter storm
damage; the District has applied for $162,000 in disaster relief reimbursement. Ms. Tanaka
responded to questions from Board Members. The Board thanked Ms. Tanaka for her
presentation.

5. OLD BUSINESS

Nothing to report.

6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT

Mr. Eggerton reported on the following activities: 1) work is underway on waterline breaks in the
Jenny Lind service area, and prioritizing Capital R&R projects to assist in the pipeline repairs; 2) a
contract will be brought to the Board to award the PRV installation in the Jenny Lind service area to
help address high pressure issues; 3) a status report on research of a customer complaint
regarding tenant/owner issue; 4) the General Manager was asked to head ACWA'’s Federal Affairs
Committee; and 5) reported on meeting with West Point community members in October to discuss
community concerns with further meetings to be scheduled.

7. BOARD REPORTS / INFORMATION / FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Director Underhill thanked the Board Members for attending the October 25" ribbon cutting
ceremony celebrating the completion of the District’'s Ebbetts Pass Reach 3A Water Transmission
Pipeline Replacement Project.

Director Thomas reported on today’s Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Sustainability Agency
meeting.

Director Strange reported on the community meeting in West Point in October; and he commented
that he wants to move forward with a strategy with the US Bureau of Reclamation for water
commitment.

Director Ratterman reported on the cancellation of the following meetings: December 20" meeting
of the Calaveras-Amador Mokelumne River Association, and the December 22™ meeting of the
Mountain Counties Water Resources Association.

Director Davidson ~ nothing to report.

11/08/17 Board Mecting
Page 10155



UNAPPROVED ~ SUBJECT TO CHANGES

8. NEXT BOARD MEETINGS

Wednesday, December 13, 2017, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting
Wednesday, January 10, 2018, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting

The Open Session ended at 2:28 p.m.

The meeting adjourned into Closed Session at approximately 2:30 p.m. Those present were Board
Members: Jeff Davidson, Scott Ratterman, Russ Thomas, Bertha Underhill, and Terry Strange;
staff member Dave Eggerton, General Manager; and General Counsel Matt Weber (by
teleconference).

9. CLOSED SESSION

9a

9b

Sc

9d

9e

Conference with Real Property Negotiators

Government Code §54956.8

Property: APN's 046-019-051, 073-042-127, and 073-042-129, Valley Springs, CA
District negotiator(s): Dave Eggerton

Under negotiations: price and other terms

Conference with Real Property Negotiators
Government Code §54956.8

Property: APN 067-015-003, Copperopolis, CA
District negotiator(s): Dave Eggerton

Under negotiations: price and other terms

Conference with Real Property Negotiators

Government Code §54956.8

Property: APN’s 044-032-012 and 044-032-005, San Andreas, CA
District negotiator(s): Dave Eggerton

Under negotiations: price and other terms

Conference with Real Property Negotiators
Government Code §54956.8

Property: APN 048-003-190, Burson, CA
District negotiator(s): Dave Eggerton
Under negotiations: price and other terms

Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation

Government Code § 54956.9(a)

La Contenta Investors, LTD vs. CCWD (Calaveras County Superior
Court #11CV37713)

10. REPORTABLE ACTION FROM CLOSED SESSION

The Board reconvened into Open Session at approximately 3:35 p.m. There was no reportable

action.

11/08/17 Board Meeting
Page 10156



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

11. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 3:35 p.m.

By: ATTEST:
Dave Eggerton Mona Walker
General Manager Clerk to the Board

11/08/17 Board Meeting
Page 10157



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-67
RESOLUTION NO. PFA-03
ORDINANCE NO.  2017-01

MINUTES

CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

NOVEMBER 21, 2017

Directors Present: Scott Ratterman, Vice President
Bertha Underhill, Director
Terry Strange, Director
Russ Thomas, Director
Director(s) Absent:  Jeff Davidson, President

Staff Present: Dave Eggerton, General Manager
Mona Walker, Clerk to the Board
Jeffrey Meyer, Director of Administrative Services
Charles Palmer, District Engineer
Robbie Creamer, Engineering Analyst

Others Present: None

ORDER OF BUSINESS

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1. ROLL CALL

Vice President Ratterman called the Special Board Meeting to order at approximately 1:10 p.m.
and led the pledge of allegiance. Director Davidson was absent.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT

There was no public comment.

3. CONSENT AGENDA

There was no consent agenda.

11/21/17 Board Meeting
Page 10158



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

4, NEW BUSINESS

4a Approval / Award of Construction Contract for the Jenny Lind Water Plant
Pretreatment Project, CCWD CIP #11092, CAL-OES HMGP #4240-1-1R
(Charles Palmer, CCWD Engineer) RES 2017- 67

MOTION: Directors Strange / Thomas — Adopted Resolution No. 2017-67
Approving / Awarding Construction Contract to R.E. Smith in the
Amount of $3,418,000 for the Jenny Lind Water Plant Pretreatment
Project, CCWD CIP #11092, CAL-OES HMGP #4240-1-1R

DISCUSSION: Mr. Palmer reported that the Request for Bids was issued in October and eight
bids were received. The project is a 25% (CCWD) /75% (FEMA) cost share. The Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) authorized the $3.75 million grant funded project. The
pretreatment facility project will help improve water quality entering the Jenny Lind treatment plant
serving the La Contenta, Rancho Calaveras and Jenny Lind areas. The quality of water flowing into
the Calaveras River has been degraded as a result of the Butte Fire. The contractor will be
responsible for purchasing the equipment for the project. Staff recommended accepting the bids
for the Jenny Lind Water Plant Pretreatment Project, CCWD CIP #11092 and awarding the
construction contract to R.E. Smith of Newcastle, CA in the amount of $3,418,000. Mr. Palmer
responded to questions from Board Members.

PUBLIC COMMENT: There was no public comment.

AYES: Directors Strange, Thomas, Underhill and Ratterman
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Director Davidson

5. OLD BUSINESS

There was nothing to report.

6. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT

No report was given.

7. BOARD REPORTS / INFORMATION / FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

Director Underhill commented that the General Manager’s annual report is normally reviewed at
the Board of Director’'s December meeting. She read a thank you note from customers on Fir Drive
in Arnold for CCWD paving their street that was impacted by the Districts Reach 3A water
transmission pipeline replacement project. She will be attending the Hwy. 4 Working Group
meeting on Dec. 7™

Director Thomas announced that he will be attending the ACWA conference in Anaheim Nov. 26-
Dec. 1.

11/21/17 Board Meeting
Page 10159



UNAPPROVED — SUBJECT TO CHANGES

Director Strange inquired with staff if a town hall meeting has been scheduled in the near future for
West Point; and he announced that he will be attending the ACWA conference in Anaheim Nov.
26-Dec. 1.

Director Ratterman — nothing to report.

8. NEXT BOARD MEETINGS

= Wednesday, December 13, 2017, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting
= Wednesday, January 10, 2018, 1:00 p.m., Regular Board Meeting

9. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business, the meeting adjourned at approximately 1:35 p.m.

By: ATTEST:
Dave Eggerton Mona Walker
General Manager Clerk to the Board

11/21/17 Board Meeting
Page 10160



DATE: December 13, 2017
TO: Dave Eggerton, General Manager ,%
FROM: I,.«%.‘\Y}\/lona Walker, Executive Assistant

SUBJECT: Review Board of Directors Time Sheets for November, 2017

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

For information only.

SUMMARY:

Pursuant to direction from the Board of Directors, copies of the Board’s monthly time
sheets from which the Board is compensated from, are included in the monthly agenda
package for information. Attached are copies of the Board's time sheets for the month
of November, 2017.

Board Members can be reimbursed for mileage cost to travel to meetings/conferences
and are paid at the current IRS rate.
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

Monthly compensation and mileage reimbursement costs are included in the FY 17-18
budget.

Attachments: Board of Directors Time Sheets for November, 2017

11



sIX"(210Z '} "uepr) ulog ssuadxg Jojoalic]

‘e soueUl+4 0] BuO

938Q

1 abed

" @N ﬁ IMBIADY SANBLSIUILIPY

;uswiel) jo aumeubis

”

.m:.mp%m:_ aie-uwiglay (s)unowe aLy 1By} pue ‘passpus.

Allenjoe sem ao1A18S aU} JeU) ‘Z0-GL0Z SoURLIPIO JOMISIC] PUB 'bas 1o 00Z0zZ Loloas apos
J21BAN BlUIOHIED JO 5d0OS By} Ulym pue Jadoud s) WIRjD SIY} JBY] iSJleye JoLISI 01 AIBSSa00U
8l& Pajonpuod sssuisng pue papusiie sbunss ‘paunoul sesuadxs jey) 11091109 pue ond
8le Uislay YUo] 18s swis) su pue wiejo syl sejeys Anliad jo Ajjeuad Japun ‘paubisiepun ay |

LA L. $§ _-eAZs (ejes abeaju Sy 9sN) s/ejo | ‘poUnba sjelsewy Jodal fpasinbal spdaval ‘goy Aoljod pieog o} juensing
/ e : S e0s LWL Coped Sy] oyp Aq sejiw Aldpnu ‘eulj s[e3oL Jod Mww@msmmmww%
ERAN 5
NENT =
i o R
Va _ 02/ AW 7R om0 | 2 -]
o o
2 _ 02/ Hw Y GmMID g1
SN asuadxy Bunsap ON S3A ON SaA ON SSA uoidissag asusdxy 80 o mczmmﬁ sleq
iejo .nm. 1509 [paosddy oy 1817 UojjeIvossy doy pajeubisag AjiAnjoy
L7 AA : A
TGy TS ewen| [[] esuedxa sﬁmwm WHOL INJNFSHNGINIFY H0L034Ia
/0 #9G M7/ ﬁ\ AAUON| [X]  noiked o4 LOIMLSIA HFLYM ALNNOD SYHIAVYTVO



(2102 'L "uer) wiod asuadxg JojoaliC] 1 abed

7daqg eouBll 0] BUO 7 s\ e \ ) Ta1e( = § IM3IASY SAREBIISIUIWIPY

[

N

Allenjoe sem 208 B} JBU) 'Z0-G1.0Z SOUBLIPIO JOIISI PUB 'bas 18 00Z0Z UoNoaS apon)

N \N\% "anJ} Rsn| ale uialgy (shnowe suj) Jel) pue palapus)

o 4 Jerepn eluiofeD Jo adoos ey uiym pue Jadoid st wieo sy} j1eL 'siieye 101Isia 0 Alesssosu
ale pejonpuod ssauisng pue papusje sbuiissw ‘paiinoul sasuiadxe Jeu) 1981100 pue sny
ueuire[t Jo sameubls ale Ulaay Lo} 188 swiayl ay] pue wiejo siy | :sajejs Aunfied jo Ajjeuad Jspun ‘peubisiepun sy
QL - h . m Iy D \qdum (2781 m@mm:& Syjesn) § \ quw 0O H ‘padinbal seLviewy podar ipadinbal sydesal ‘ggpy Aoljod pleog 01 uBNSId

\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\\§ Se5°0$ LML 8ped Sy ayp Aq sejiw Ajdpnw ‘euy sje0) 104 §

S/ Q\ﬂ

A7\ Anﬂ//
W2V ) W
e

v S 021 N N\b\é\w\
S % NI ?%M Csoo LY

sl asuadxg Bunssy ON SaA ON LN ON S8 uondiiosaq asuadxg 18y30 Jo Bupgesy ajeq
jelolL 1800 feaorddy Joudg ISI] UoRRIDOSSY ‘day v.mum:m_wmm AjAnoy
¥V = -
FOMRASS [ ouwen[ [| esuwsdxa e INH O LNFWFSHNGWITY ¥OL034Ia

77 @\\&swfi Y wepon| [ 1t Tl 1ORILSIAHELYM ALNAOO SYHFAVTYO



(2102 'L

v

‘uer) wio4 asuadxg Jojoaliq | abeyd
1060 soUBUL 0T BIG iémm g “MOIASY SAEISIUILPY
‘oreANISN| ale ulsdat(S)jUNoWE sy} 1By} pue ‘pesspusi
YT 207 I SO 1o 000 i s S a0 IIASIC Pue loes 10 0020 Uoioas 0p00
; ale pajonpuod ssaulsng pue pepusye sbujjsaw ‘pasnou] sesuadxs Jely ‘1981103 pue anJ)
juewrely jo sameubis. | aie ualay Lo} 1os swia)l sy} pue wiejo sy :sejeys Anfied jo Ayjeusd Jepun ‘paubisiapun eyl
MN. bb\% $ . Qu\wm\l% mmum: m@mm\.\s Sy mw\.t m\m.NOIN. ‘padinbas sjelsyeLy podat ipaumbai sydieoas ‘pgoy Aoijod pieog o3 uensIng
7 . . : L
I SE e i ) s L e s saa i s sl o3 %
I 7= A\ : “,b.\ - -
3 Ll ENN) NI GV BRLWR) XN | 2112 17
=
NI
S0/ — SESNISOE) SONIGE REFTWA| L1/
B ol TN BEA @dﬁ L@l
— — OSSR — P3| LT 7
) o7l VIO — SRBNNp NS y| 2T+ 12~ 0]
SR asuadxg Bugeapy ON SaA ON S9A ON SaA uondiiosaqg esusdxg Jeylp Jo Bunssiy sl
jejol 31s00 jeaosddy JoLiy 3SI7 UOIIRIDOSSY -dey psjeubissg Aanoy
TITIELT VPSS ewey[ [] eweda o NWHOL LNFWASHNTNIFY HOLOTHIT
LIO7 "JSFWBNON dapuopy| [x] wosed 0

LOIHALSIA HFLYM ALNNOD SYHIAY TV



{£T0Z ‘T ‘uer) wiod asuadx3y J01081iQ

1 38ed

1dag asunuld 03 [ouiblio

D\.\\ TN\\\

:31eQ § IM3IABY BAIIRIISIUIWPY
ey

sty mﬁMm

2upwipl) fo aunipubis

'3nJ} pue paiiiasnf ale udsy

(s)iunowe ay3 pue ‘paispuas Ajjenioe sem ad1AIas BYY 1RYL Z0-GTOT @IUBLIPIQO 121ISI] pue bas 19
Q0207 UOI103S 3P0 Jaiean eiulolle)n Jo o2doos YL UiL3im pue Jadoud S Wwie[o syl jeys ..m.:m&m Jol3sIg
03 Alessedau aJe PajoNpuod ssaUISN( pue papuslie sSuiIPaW ‘Paindul S3sUSdXs 18] 11991400 pue
9nJ} ale Ulalsy Yo} 135 swiall syl pue wiepd siyt saieys Ainfiad jo Ayjeusd sspun ‘paudisiepun sy

89°L025 - §109¢ § (2104 3bpajIW SY| 3sn) S[b10] ‘padinbau sipliapw/1iodal fpaiinba sydiasal ‘EQE A31j0d pipog 03 JUPNSIng
88¢ SES0S | LI/1/T 19304 SY| 8y3 Aq sajiw Aidiynw ‘aul) s|p3o) 404
A \Lﬁ @\ A\)//N/__
,ﬁ ot w w/, .vw %,Hw\
0 114 18foud pury Auusr soy Buizesiy jepads amodl  AoN-TZ
6t 0 2811WIWIOD aaueuld dMDOD]  AON-TZ
6% 071 Supesw pleog gmdd]  AON-8
88 VYMDIST 40j UOBY0IS|  AON-8
20z 0ZT uINgny Ui salluno) Uielunon|  100-/2
SallN | asuadx3 | Supasy ON S ON SSA ON SOA q q g aleq
uopdiasaqg asuadx
|e101 150D jeaosddy Jolig 1517 UO[3RID0SSY ‘day pajeudisag HELSSQ BSURCX3 19410 40 SunaN AlIADY

SDUIOY ] SShY WD

LTOT 412QUIBA0ON  JA/YIUOW

)
)

35N WHO4 LNIFNISHNGNIFY 012341
ulpy

1o LOI41SIA YILYM ALNNOD SYHINYTVOD

asuadxy
fjo1Aed




(2102 '} "uer) uuo4 asuadxs Jojosiiq

| abed

1dag eouellS 0] BUO %ﬁ - . M TMBIASY SAIENSIUIWPY

[T “ormyAjisnl o%aLerdy (s)junolie eu) Jey} pUe ‘pelspual

) " ‘20~ b

— o1 BHOUSD 16 Saa0s S UL DUsdord o e T (o 12 00202 U038 P20

ale Pajonpuog sssuisng pue pepusyie sBuljesll ‘pasinoul sasuadxs 124} 1081100 pue anl)

aqueweld jo eunjeubls ale Uialay Ypo} Jos swiayl ayj pue wieo sy seyels Anflad jo Ayjeuad tepun ‘psubisispun sy

\:mmo N \q /8 ¢ _ . m.v NQ.\ ¢ (831 8beOjIW S| 8SN) S \WVNO H ‘pasinbeu sjeusyewy podsl ipambad spdiosel ‘ggpp Aoljod pieog 03 JuBnSINg
\ . . B 7
s L e s o ks sauudnu s sieoL o3 Y%
- e
o /O )

L€ OC/ ¥ bofmay peod | & [/
S3|iN asuadxg Bugaapy ON sap ON SBA ON sa) uondiiosaqg esuadxg Jayj0 10 Bunssiy sjeq
1ejoL 3809 jeaosddy tony }S17 UojjBIDOSSY dey pajeubisag Aiaoy

AOSIIALT FF20 euey[ [ ssweda e WHOL LNFWISHNGNIFY HOLOFHIA
SIGE STGATN ppquop| [A wesked 00 JOIMISI ¥FLYM ALNNOD SYSIAY TV



RESOLUTION NO. 2017 —

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

RATIFYING CLAIM SUMMARY NO. 549

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
has reviewed and considered Claim Summary Number 549 at the Regular Meeting held
on December 13, 2017; and

WHEREAS, Board Members have resolved questions, issues, or concemns by
consultation with District staff during said meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE !T RESOLVED that the CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER
DISTRICT Board of Directors hereby ratifies Claim Summary Number 549 in the
amount of $1,406,232.44 for the month of November, 2017.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13" day of December, 2017 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:
CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
President
Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Mona Walker

Clerk to the Board



Calaveras County Water District
Claim Summary # 549

Certificate of Administrative Officer

The services listed on the within schedules were actually rendered by the
close of the current month. The articles listed on the schedules within and the
supporting invoices were actually delivered, or payment therefore is properly due
prior to delivery. To the best of my knowledge all claims made are in accordance
with adopted Board policies and/or other Board actions and are in compliance with
all applicable laws. The claimants named on the within schedules are each entitled
to the amount set opposite their respective names.

O/ﬂ? /M{,? —

Jeffref Meyer
Director of Administrative Services

1. November 2017 payroll checks issued on 11/15/2017 156,685.61
2. November 2017 payroll checks issued on 11/30/2017 142,745.02
3. November 2017 compensation to Directors 973.65
4. Vendor payments for November 1 through 30, 2017 798,293.96
5. Other payroll related costs 307,534.20

Claim Summary Total $1.,406,232.44




96'€62'86. syuawAed |e1ol

0L'68S°LT (4) Aejino [eden
TT'629'LTT (3) spaloid ygy [ended
LL'98LL6T (a) JUBWISSINGLUIDY |BI1IE]
v7°0.8°8 o)) (24nupuadxa 01 Jod pa3as|jod spuny) syuswhed Alepnpid
LE'TT69 (q) SJuBWaaJ3e Juel3d WO pasinquiial aq 03 sainiipuadxy
29'v8LY v) saouade 19410 WO pasinguuids aq 03 salnypuadx3y
STTTL YoY saJnjipuadx3 Sunesado amdd

L1402 '0€-} JequiaAoN
Aewiwing juswesingsiq dy
oUISIq J9¥ep Auno selsageD




@
(o)

(o))

@

840 |

82°00€ LL0Z/0E/L L LZ L3 oPIUBA - Jeg Wb AlddnS OLNY IONYY 622821
20°06 LL0Z/0E/LL yLL# SIOIUBA - YyouH dosa/lieg AlddNS OLNY QTONYY 622821
LEY9 L102/08/L1 PGG# BIOIUBA - sepelg JodipAuelo0D a4 iy AlddNS OLNVY QIONYY 62821
0226 L10Z/0€/LL PEG# SIDIUBA - sepelg Jedipsebreyn Aspeg AlddNS OLNY ATONYY 62821
Gy'oe 210z/0¢/LL CEG# SJOIUBA - sape|g adipy AlddNS OLNY ATONYY 62821
oF LLL LLOZ10elL L BZS# SIDIUBA - J8id/OAUBipesH AlddNS OLNY IONYY 622821
04048 L102/08/1 ) TTSH SIPIYAA - siojoy/sped/siedie) axelg AlddNS OLNY QIONYY 672821
95°8 2102/0¢/LL €Y L# 9IOIYBA - PINI4 JaysEp AlddNS OLNY QTONYY 622821
¥8'6¢ 2102/08/11 BZL# BIOIUBA - JIOMSYIL 11O AlddNS OLNY QTONYY 622821
0Lgzs'ol L102/94/LL flevues|g sJajuny - yue] abeiolg Jejep ues|Doadsuy) ANYANOD HOFLYNOY  $228ZL
00'¥61'G 2102/60711 G/t seai] Big - syue | ebelolg Jejep ues|) ANVAINOD HOZL VNDY 821821
LEPP6'L 210Z/8L/LL ISHMDT - (2) saueneg/(z) sung pedu) JIDOTONHOIL VIMLISNANI a3iddY  €22921
6818 210290711 L1/} seauney ‘sousinsuj yjean SSOYD INTE-WIHINY 143
8100601 2102/90/L1L L1/} seahojdws ‘sourinsu| yjesH SSOHO 3NTE-WIHINY 143
00°002 2102/08/LL LI/LL dwod pausjeq L4 ANVANOD 1SNML IAVHLININY 82821
Livbl'e 2102/607L1 21/0} 82ialag wiopun ONI'SIDIAYIS IAdI¥INY 221821
00°09.'2 2102160711 81L/0€/6-L1/1L/01 WeuOS Julek Juswebeuep eleq Jojemaisep ONI 3UVMLH408 XYW TIY 921821
08'6. £102/60/11 dLMTP - L1/1L 181000 Jajepn HILYM ONDINIYA YHENYHTY 621821
¥8°0. 2102760711 dLMMOT - L1/ 181000 J8jepp HILYM ONDINIYA YHEWYHTY  $Z182)
00'9LL'% 2102/60/LL S/d ejnMesiip - uoejleisu) aous 4 ONIONId NOSHIATY  £21821
¥L'202'C 2102/60711 L1101 oepy ovidy  Z2L82)
88°G8Y'L 2L02/0¢/LL LI/} 9018G JjolAed ONI dav 222821
¥8'€2L 2102760711 LL/Z) s@81ey '8dURINSU| UOISIA VIdP/YMOY 121821
08'26¥'2 1102/80/11 L2} s9aunay ‘sourinsy| {ejus( Yidr/YMOY 121821
04°6PL 2102/80/11 LIl dv3a Yidr/YMOY  LZL8ZL
(AR5 Al 2102160711 LL/z) seehojdwiz ‘soueInsuy UOISIA YIdI/YMOY 121821
¥8°0%2'9 2102/60/11 L1/z) seshojdwiz ‘sourinsu| jejus( YidPYMOVY 121821
2£728 2102760711 umoug - £1/0 1 auoyd |i1ed ALITNEOW LB LY 021821
99°9F1 LL02/08/LL QLM - L1/L ) Xedq/suold SLANTVO LS 1Y 92821
¥Z'¥91 L102/0€/L L Ly eur-L CLINTVOL® LY 6/282L
o161 L10Z/0E/L) OH dO - Z1/1 1 suoyd CLIINTVO LR LY ¥.282)
9. 2102108111 ASHMOD - L1/1 1 suoyd CLANIVO LS LY €/282L
19’81 L10Z/0E/L 1 S/esfezy - L1/L} suoyd CIINTVO LB 1Y 2/282L
20°L8 L102/0¢8/L) 8JOUNH - /1701 BUOYd ELANTVO LR LY L/z82L
8E°5oV £10z2/08/L L souejsiq BuoT - £1/1| suoyd CIINIVOL® LY 0.282)
00'€0€’} L10T/0E/L L BpIM JoMISI - £L/1L L suoud ELINIVO L9 LY 892821
LE'9L 210208/ L S/d uojBupoq - 1711 suoyd CLINIVO L9 LY /92821
G¥'6.E 2102/60/11 [lpuu0 dwe - £1/0) Jemo ] olpey jousiq ZIBNWVO L®LlY 6L182L
00°08 21020811 xe|dwoy 07 - Z1/1 1 @J1nI9g Jauleiu| 191V 99282t
06'69 L102/941L LL/L1 s8UI pases L®iLvV 0zZzZ8zL
08'ey 2102/80/11 07 - L1/0L 80o1ag Jeuley) LR1Y 811821
unowy ajeq uonduiosaq uojoesues | sakojdwig iopusp "ON ¥oays

L10T '0€-1 toquIanoN
uswiesingsiq 4y
MDD



@

=)

8i0¢

00°6¥ LL0Z/L0/LL sewoy | - uonesisibay Buesiy ussy 80inoseay S8RUNOYD UIBUNO SIOIAYIS QYYD 143
59'828 LL0Z/L0/L L sewoy | - BuiBpo sousIsjuogd j1Bd YADY SADIAYIS QYYD 143
8v°'129 L10Z/L00L L abueng - Buibpo soualejuo) (B4 YMOVY SIDINGAS QYYD 143
00'559 LLVOZILO/LL sbuens - uoyensibey sousIBUOD (B4 YMOY SIDIAYIAS QYYD 143
8b'129 L10ZIL0/LL uospine( - BuibpoT eousiajuo) jled VMOV SIVINYIS QdvD 143
98'GLY'L 2102/80/L 1 21/01 sauif suoyd I3LV0 gelsel
00°G LLOZ/GLILL L1/0} 8Bieyd eoinieg 09 AlddNS ONIQTEIM VINYOLHITYD 922821
86'0€0'L L102/60/11 SPIM JOLISIQ - L1/)} fesodsig asnjey SWILSAS AHIAODTY JLSYM VINYOLITVO  Z£1821
21°€91 L102/60/L1 Buldwes d1AD0 - sBufiid/adid/ebnes ainssald/seaen ONI 00 ¥3gNNT SYHIAVIVD 951821
WAV 4 L10Z/60/11 ali[eD - SaYSNIg/SAN0IDAUIEL/IN MBS S|OH ONI 0D ¥IgWNT SYHIAVIVD  9£182L
92’61 L10Z/60/L1 Jajiel] suonosjjo) - syexong/deog ONJ 00 d3gNNT SYH3IAVIVO 961821
LE2EL 210Z/60/1 1 saiddng g/ - sBeg/sai 1 e|qed/pioD uoisuaxg/ede | ONI 00 ¥38ANT SYYIAVIVDO  9€18ZL
GL'SS L102/80/11 ISHMOD - (2) sleroys ONI 0D ¥3gNNT SYHIAVIVO  9€18ZL
v0'9L L102/60/11 dO¥00 - sBuysng/sbuniiy ONI 00 ¥3gNNTSYYIAVYIVD  9€18Z1
P4 °TA L102/60/4 1 d LMAMINS - Jerewniy/dweid/en|o/Buign L/sBuni- ONI 00 ¥3gANT SYYIAVIVD 961821
1£'859 L10Z/80/11 S/d eliirtasiipn - dlge ededspueT/eass|S odid/sIiBN/sequnT ONI 00 ¥3gWNT SYHIAVIVD 921821
8562 L10Z/80/L1 MBI UORONISUOY - 8[9AsT] ONI 00 ¥3gWNT SYHIAVIVD 961821
00°292'¢ LLOZ/OE/LL Py weq sojuny - YIOM Pield/ApniS [ejuswuLOAUT SNYIANI MNM-IIN S0 ANVE SYHIAYIVO 282821
L 2102/60/L1 L LO# BIDIYOA ~ SIBS INN 91|4/S19S HE/SI9008/SaUOUBIM AlddNS OLNY SYHIAYIVD  GEL8Z)
91'06% L102/60/11 0T.# BIOIYBA - S}OG/SHOOH MO | /1epjoH 8li] aiedg vHavo  velszl
18'252 2102160711 OEL# BI0IUSA - JOJo uey IVHEYD  vEL8TL
g6°0¢t 2102/60/L1 LLIOL/LL-LE/0L PY JUBWINIOSY || UBIDLIOSIT TIES® ANG  ££1821
05'¢S L102/60/1 1 L1/0} JuslesINquiiay [9ARL L 8010 1S0d ANVELIL 'I¥HMNG  1e18zL
eggee’) LLOZ/0E/LL 1apeoT Jeoqog 43 - 89S INOH 00S ONI "IVYLIN3O Lv0809 18282}
9.°68G'€l  2102/60/LL Jsloid Jusweoe|dey ONI D0SSY ONINNVId SNLLSNONY  0€1L82)
jUBL POOMPaY-SDINSS YdIN/YDID/R0IN0s8Y {einingy/esibojolg

00°00} LLOZIOE/LL juswissINquISY Wex3 ANOL ‘'dINLY 082821
00°08 LL0Z/9L/1L €L L# BOIYBA - () 8BueyD 81| [euoseas IYVO OLNY ANV JMIL QTONYY 62282
£9°095 LLOZISLILL PEGH PIYBA - (¥) SailL LU IHVO OLNY ANV JHIL AIONYY 622821
€9'8¥S LL0ZI9WLL EEG# DIOIYDA - (¥) sauiL Jejuipm IHYD OLNY ANV JHIL QTONYY 522821
00°08 2102191111 TTS# SIOIUBA - () 8BueyD ali| |euosess JHYO OLNY ANV YL QIONYY 622821
00°051 LLOZIBLLL LOG# SI2IUdA - (9) 8Buey) aui) jeuosess IHYO OLNY ANV JHIL GTIONYY 622821
£2°059 L102/60/1 4 B2G# SIOIUBA - (¥) sadi] JSJUIM IMYD OLNY ANV FHIL TIONYY 621821
99'+09'} L102/60/11 EpL# BPIYDA - (9) saulL IHVO OLNV ANV IMIL QTIONYY 621821
95'8 LL0Z/0E/ 1L 10ss81dWOD d 1M SJSJUNH - 8SOHMONYD Jleg AlddNS OLNY QIONYY  6/2821L
L9'eg L10Z/0g/1L d.LM sJajuny - sebieyy Aispeg AlddnS OLNY QTIONYY 622821
682y L10Z/0¢g/1) dIMMINS - yousipuebreyn Aisjeg AlddNS OLNY QIONYY 622821
v¥'S0L LLOZIOE/LL doys d3 - Hg/siemo | /eqny/seleped/seaoin/ydusipysyog/de | AlddNS OLNVY QTIONYY 622821
96'8¢L L10Z/0€/1L SI0}eIBURY d - 80IAIRS JeMOd/IIO AlddNS OLNY QIONYY 622821
AR L102/08/L L 9 PuUOd dLMMOD - 13 [B8S Wey AlddNS OLNY QIONYY 622821
/886 L102/0E/1L ) dLMMY - BUODI|IS/I8]se|g/usspieIg/esesld AlddNnS OLNY QIONYY  6/282)
junowyy ajeq co_ua_‘_ommo uojjoesueld | mm>035mt0vzm> "ON 094D

2102 '0€-1 JoquianoN
uswiasingsiq dv

MDD



840 ¢

00'98 L10¢/60/1 1 Jauin] - femauay Hay | epelo ‘soueusjUBW WaSAS UOROS(0D VMO  LGL8CL
00081 210¢2/60/1L1 Jauing - |emausy diysiaquisiy vamo  1§1i8ct
00'2¥8'9 £10c/0¢E/L L senQ diysiequaiy 8102 vaso  0eeszi
00002 Lioz/oe/Ll juswesinquilay joog Alejeg NYIHE "HIMOVHNNED 682821
6g'61¢ L10Z/0E/LL OH dO - LI/} ) 8oiniag Jejep andod  88e8T
(= 18088'LY L102/1e/v L dLATP - SjeY Snid AlelWilld 689# UONEBIOT vddO  $9Zecl
}8°90€'9L L10¢/60/11 L1/0L remod VddO  0518C)
00°00S'y L102/0E/L ] uadojenaq sseooud [j0ihed ONI SNOILNTOS HLINOD /82821

L1111 sediueg poddng sinjoniisedu) ||
L1/01 syoday jopn Bullojuopy Jejempunolsy

ONI SNOILNIOS HLINOD  6¥l8ct
ONI SZI90TONHOIL HIYMVYI HOUNQD 622821

00'es0'e L102/60/1 1
00°Lv6'E L102/9LLL

(@) oges L102/60/11 109(01d Vg Yoeay 43 - eomieg uopoadsul/bunsa | jeusiep ONI STIDOTONHOIL HLHVA HOANOD  8vL8ZlL
£6°68 LL0Z/0E/LL JLIMTIM - ZL/L 1L @d1nas jauiey) LSVYONOD  9828ZL
£6°G8 LL0Z/0E/L L QLM - L1/1 1 9oIAI8S Joulalu 1SVOWOD 592821
£6'68 L10Z/08/L L dLMTIM - LL/Z) 8oinag jeuis) 1SYOWOD  ¥8Z8¢21
€668 210Z/60/11 OH dO - L1/} @0laisg joussu) 1SVOWOD  /pL8ZL
15°e8 2102/60/L1 OLOA 40 - LL/1 ) 801M88 1oulsul 1SVYONOD  9pLigzl
00°069 2102/60/L 1 L1L/0L @24AIRS PNOID BOIUBA SNOILYDINAWWOD YIGNNTOD  Siigzl
8€°9Z L102/80/4 1 €254 BOIYaA - Bupyd "ONI 'IONVHOXI IIvHE B HOLNTO  #¥L8ZL
00822 L10Z/0/L L dLMIP - 21/ ) 108U0D 1s8d JOYLINOD 1S3d MHYTID  £829Z1
0048 210Z/SL/LL dLMMY - L1711 [00U0D) 1s8d TOULINOD 183d Muv10 822821
0016 2102/80/L1 dIMdM - LL/L L [05U0D jsod JOHLNOD 1S3d ¥HVI1D  £7182)
£T'G69'Y 2102/60/11 abellIA SN XIS - Z1L/0) Jomag STIONY H0O ALID  Zvigzl
§8'6/2 2102/80/L1 SUB0Lo8IT - S1eX008 Alunoeg La3y¥o gIn  iyisgy
1¥'06 2102911 peoy Yeai) Jeeg - gy .2/t | SLONAOYd MO0y T1iH NOSYVYD 22282
£0°e8l 2102/60/L1 peoy ¥ea1) Jeag - eseg peoy S10ONAOYd MO0 TIH NOSHYD  0pLezL
02059 2102/60/L1 %00}g uleg d3 - gv || SSB(D p/¢ SLONA0Yd MO0 TTiH NOSHYD  0p18ZL
9.'9¢ 21027L0/LL sayjddng suonejey askojdwig SADIAYIS QYYD 149
L¥E 2102720/ aseg suoyd SADIAYIS QYYD 143
66161 L10Z/L0/LL Jaded SADIAMAS QHVD  L4T
1618 2102120141 Jo9foid g yoray d3 - sayddng Auowseled Buging uoqqry SIDIAYTS ANVD 143
0662 2102120111 OH dO - dn yoeg jsusaiu SIDAYAS QHVYD 143
YA WA LL0Z/20/101 L1/0} 8Bueyox3 peisoH (-3 SIDIAYIS a¥vo 143
1616 L1021L0/L1L d.LM SJejuni - 90lA18g 19WIBiY| SAOINGAS QYYD LdT
Y9 L102IL014 1 dete] - asuadx3 [eael | Buluel] YQyDS 91emIspLUop) SIOIAYIAS aXVD 143
65701 1102720141 Jexordwru) - ssuadx3 jaael ) Buluiel | YOYOS SIEMISPUOAN SHADIAHIS QYYD Ld4T
2016 2402120111 oueloweg - ysodaq BuibpoT uojuaAuo) YINIS SIADINYIS QuvO 143
GLGEY'L 2102120111 ybuis - 8sinog dald Buuesuibuz Jo sjeluswepuny SFOIAYIS YYD 143
00°'se 2102120111 YHEMOH - Jeuigapy ustiAojdwg yH SIADIAYIS A¥vD 143
00°0¢ LL0ZIL0/LL lahay - uonesnsibay Buges|y seuelnqu ) e}eQ uinbeor ueg/oes SIOINYIAS a¥VD 143
00052 L102/L0/L1L lakayy - uoneysiBey Buesyy ussy siainseas] fediolunpy jiieD SIADIAYIS auvD 143
00°G¥ 2102120/ liysepun - uonessibay Bunes|y USSY 80IN0SBY SBRUNOYD UIBIUNON SIDIAYIS A¥VYD 143
unowy ajeq uonduosag uooesuei] aakojdwgliopusa "ON ¥oayn

2102 '0€-1 JequisAoN
Juswesingsiq dv

amaso



@

(@

(@

840 ¥

0566 L102/80/11 9Z1# SIoIYBA - (1) sl edey 1ei4 AousBiswg IOIAYIS ¥ STYIL HOD  goigel
00'599 2102/911LL dLMMY - [eroway] spijog-oig ONI IVSOdSIa IgnvD  9g28z L
GZ'9eL L10Z/9L11 dLMM OLDON/HQ - lerowsy spliog-oig "ONI VSOdSIa IgNYD 982821
$6'2/1 LL0Z/0E/LL ue/iepun - spieg sssuisng SOIHAYYD 2 ONILNING TIHLOO4  00e8Z)
0028 210Z/91LL youey desys - L1/1} [ejusy Jejio) sjqeod S13HOL I19VLHOd THHLOOd  SEZ821
00'v9l L102/9L/LL S0BJEAA - LL/L L [BIUSY 18I0 3|qelOod SLATOL 378V.LH0d THHLOOL [StATAR
vL€8lL 2L0Z/9M1LL JusBSINQUISY 1BBS) JBLIBBAN JOIUIN TIIYEVA 'HIHOLI4  pEZEZL
L0'9p 210Z/9LLL Juswesinquiiay [anel] Jeuiwag ubiseq JlBMm YMYD 139UV "HIHOLT 1Y pEZ8TL
18'8¥6'C L10Z/0E/LL uteg d3 - (2€) o190 .8/5 €2 ONI 'STSIMNJHILINT NOSNOYId 662821
91'6v6 LL029LLL weg d3 - (1) 4818 .2/(F) Jele ,8/5 €Z¥L ONI 'SISI¥dYIINT NOSNOYIL  €£2821
or'6l £102/60/L1 abiey) someg €Z¥)L ONI 'SISIMdYILNT NOSNOYaL  +91821
LLLb9 2102/08/LL HO0}G - SBACIS) XB)E] TYNILSYS 862821
0L¥v9 L102/9MLL r - edejputed Bupjley/selisheg/s|emo L /sope|g mes TUYNILSYL  2eesel
12611 210Z/60711L d3 - sessej9 Ajojeg/sbnjdiesy/sieidepyyd] Bwse|d/sepo.joaly TYNILSYL  £9i8ZL
00€2Z 2102/60/41 Y00}S - SBA0IS Xeje] TUYNILSYH  €9182L
00°2ov'L 2102/0¢/LL Li/y1 Bunse siepn ONI “IVOILATYNY NOLVY3 SNIJOYNT  26282)
00'6£S'y L10Z/08/LL LL/L) Buisa ) sejepn sisep ONI “IYOILATYNY NOLVA SNIJ0MNT  £62821
00°9€ L102/9L/LL 108l0id Juswaoe|dey auljadld Ve Yoeay 43 - buydwes |-oeg ONI "IYOILATYNY NOLv3 SNIHO¥NA  LgegzL
00°/1§ 110Z/80/11 L1/0L Bunsa] se1epn ONI “TYOILATYNY NOLVYE SNIHJOMNT  Z9182)
00'829'L £10Z/60/L 1L L1/01 Bugsa] Jejepp sisepy ONI "IYOILATYNY NOLV3 SNIJOHNT 291821
¥0'022'} 2102/60/11 Ana anjjowoiny g Bowg wooz 1d3a INIWDOTIATA LNFWAOTINT 19182
12°990'01 LL0Z/0E/L L wefold buiben wesng ssuld sjYM ONI 'ONILINSNOD 44003 962821
86°95G'8 2102160711 g Apnig 'Alddng Jsiep Jealy suwnjadop ONI 'ONILINSNOD d¥003 091821
05'820'vL 2102/60/1L v Apnig ‘Alddng isjepn Jeary suwnjexopy ONI'ONILTINSNOD 44003 091821
96'595 2102/60/L1 Apnig Jejepn Aojjen sbundg jes ONI'ONILTINSNOD d¥023 091821
gzozs'e 2102/60/11 BuiBen weang yea1) Jeag - MelAeY [BjUSWILCIAUY ONI 'ONILTINSNOD d¥003 091821
16°29 2102/60/11 d1M sJejuny - sbeg wnnoepsuswadawild/sBuniy adid H3dANT SSYd S113993 661821
96262'2 2102/60/11 L1101 8N4 IOINYES SVO SSvd SL13ggd  851L82)
6£'2'9 2102/08/LL Anpoed yusuneal] -ald dIMM - S9IIASS YDID M3ana 6282t
89 LLL 210Z/6071L Jswesinquiisy joog A1ajes TAVHOIN 'O¥Ngna 951821
00°961L°z1L 210208711 L1/0} s30in9g [ebian] d77 SAINYOLLY ANVYE AGNMOQ  ¥6282Z)
95°€69'ce 2102/60/L1 L1/80 saoineg [efe dTT SAINYOLLY ANVHE AINMOQ 651821
9€°060'Y 2102/60/L1 Buussuibug - (1) sesusol eduBUSIUERIN QYDOINY ONISNOILNTIOS L1a  $5182L
IXAL0] LL02/08/LL juswesinquiey [aael] Wex jusiiiesl ] Jajep 131HaYO 'SIOINYIA  £62821L
z9'9LL L102/8L/LL JUSWBSINQUIBY [2ABL] SSBID MBIASY JUBLUIBaIL IB]BAA 13IHEVO 'SIDINVIA  0£Z8TL
86¥1 2L0Z/08/LL LI/ [onely 443r 'NOSQINYG 262821
22°9L1'€ 2102760711 21/0} Buisseoold uswelels gn 3S0HdVLYa 25i8eL
00081 2102/08/11 laxyoedwni) - [emeusy diysiaquiapy Y3IMO  LBZ8ZL
00°06 L102/60/11 Aouupy - [emousy Wa) | spRID) ‘UOHBIUSWINASUY/|EOLI0a] YIMO 161821
00081 LL02/60/11 250y - [emauay diysiequisiy VIMO 151821
00081 2102/60/L1 1pIBYos - [lemousy diysiaquisiy Y3MO  LGL8elL
junouwy ajeqd Comuatowmﬂ uonosesued j mm?oEEmtoncm\/ ‘ON jo8yn

L10Z '0€-1 JaquieAoN
ewesIngsiq 4y

aman



(=
)]

(@

8406

16281 L102/60/41 Juswesinquiey joog Ajaes 11008 'ad04SNNT  £81821
SLlY LL0Z/9bILL dM - sig [Iua/erem pamog S3IMO1T  Zvesel
ov'6YE LL02/9LLL dIMdM - JojeseBlyay S3MOT  Zveszl
S0'90¥ L102/9LLL OH dO - e dn dod/sse|s Buiumy/aiempier S3IMOT  Z¥Z8eL
/8061 L10Z/9LLL JusLussINquIRY |anel] sesse|) Bujuies] vidr AJOVIS WY1I07  LyZ8Tl
B6.°629'L L102/0E/L L suoleaouay 91'6L 5,8/ DO-saoineg ubisaq/Bunssulbugy ONI'OY 2 3371 Liegel
6.°629'L LLOT/0E/LL ssedAg ule|y 80104 % £1°24'8 5,8/ DO-ssoIneg ubiseq/Buussuibug ONI'OM % 337  Lleszl
L L9 L102/60/L1 00 - saaoj9y/saiddng/woolg/eaoyg/sisidnod/sBuniid/edld ANTIVA INYL HOOTINL 3MYT 2818zl
19°€S 210219411 doys d3 - 183 1e¥008 LSIMAIN TIVEWIM  0vZezL
TN L102/60/1 1 ajepdn ueid Jejsely ar0) saddo) - ssolneg Buussuibuz SINVLINSNOD SMNIMACINNIM 18182}
00'56¥% 210208/ L d3 - Bunsa | moppyoeg "ONI ‘SAOIAYIS MOTHMOVE SATIEM  60€82L
PO'6EL 21020814 L OH dO - pieogsiym IHUNLINYNL I01440 ITUASINVYS  80€8ZL
Zv'8v9 2102/08/bL OH dO - (pesn) 18u1ge) 8ji4 J00id 811 FTHNLINYNA IDIH440 ITUASINYE  80£8Z1
LGes 210216011 L1/0L uononysaQ juswnooqg NIVLNNOW NOYI 641821
00°00¢ L102/60/11 S/d Juowmopeai o3 - JOJOW {ind 0} suel) NIATM "SYMNI 871821
796182 2102/80/L1 dLMMINL ~ 10101 dH § 02 TVOIMLOI 1T IVIMLSNANI 221821
88'685L 2102/60/L1 S/ dIMM OLONHA -~ 1010 dH § 00 VYOIMLOTT3 IVIMLSNANI 221821
Z6LLL LL0Z/0EILL Justussinquiey joog Alejes NOWYQ ‘NOSLNH 20821
80°200') 2102108711 Jaddog - jen4 ONI'SNOS ® INNH  90£8Z1
¥6°08 LL0Z/9LILL dIMMY - L1711 80IM8g Jeulalu) LINSIHONH  6£282L
€228 L102/60/L1 dLMMNA - Z1/1 1 8oi8g jeuisiy) LINSIHONH 91821
z0'L8 2102/60711 juswesINquIsy [9ABI] JBUILISS [90XT Yrag ‘HIMVYMOH 21821
G1'892') 2L0Z/08/LL 00 - ALV slejod soinag SNOILNTOS OV LTOH  §0£8ZL
00°686'} 210Z/0/L L LL/1) @o1ieg [euojuer ONINVIIO SA00O90OH  v0E8ZL
£9'8/ 2102760/ 1L SL/# BPIUBA - 3gNI0 IAILOWOLNY HISMSAH  v/18Z1L
26'62¢'L 210208711 L1I0L Apnig 801088 J0 1500)/sisAjruY [BiouBUl] daH  £0£8ZL
129, 2102/80/L1 juswiesinquiiay Jean) JaUIBaAA JSIUIAA LH390Y ‘ATINVH 021821
81204 L10Z/08/L 1 d MM - BUMOIYD (JdQ/81BHNSOIY L WNIPOS/UOAN|OS/BOIGRIS ANVAWOD HOVH  L0E8ZL
00002 LLOZ/9L/LL JUBWISSINGUISY JBBS) JOUIBBAA JBJUIAN MOIY ‘NId4IMD  8¢z8zl
VLl 2L0Z/9L/LL Juswesinquiey joog Alejes MOIY ‘NId4IMO  8ez8zL
#8104 LL02/9L/LL doys d3 - Jejsowissy ] /iejesH oujos|g HIONIVHD 182821
6.°€91 2102/60/LL suelolosg - ase) Buikuep/peday Buueplog/siepuag jinpuoc) YIONIVHO 891821
00'82L 1102/60/L 1L d1M @2ejfepn - SBAjeA Jepeojun HIONIVEO 891821
9€°80} £102/60/1 1 0Z.Z# dIOIYBA - 1Y Pl 1sdid/eH pleH/saysinbunxg aiig HIONIVHED  89i82)
66786 L102/60/L1 L LO# BIyaA - sBumiid/dwnd 110 eisepm YIONIVHO 89182}
£5°20¢ L102/60/1 1 LGG# SIDIUBA - 810j08UL0D/S82)dS HIONIVHO 891821
00°298'21 21021607111 d1LM sJeiung - Juswaoejdey Jeabyoymg/ped e1a1ouo)) olMLOTNIZ A0 9182l
06'L8 210Z/80/L1 suejoLyoa|3g - sol | 8jqepuoyoedes/jo0} Suidwu) ONI 00 AddNS ONIGNNTD TYHINTID 991821
8E°€+0'2 2102/60/1 1 ISHMOD - adid/sbuydnogysdoyg diop/sbulysng ONI 00 AddNS ONIGNNT TIvHENID 991821
66'€8 L102/60/L1 dM - deg/Bujidnod ONI 00 AddNS ONIGNNTd TYHINID 991821
60°96E'2 L102/60/11 ISHMOT - sdwelD-Ipay/edid ONI 00 ATddNS ONIGINNTTD TvY3INID 991821
junouy aje co_watumwm uoifjoesueld] mm\no_aEwtovcm> ‘ON YO8y

2102 ‘0€-1 12quIaAoN
uswesIngsiq dy
CMOD



)
)]

(a)]

8309

LOLLLZ L10Z/08/L L BPIM JOMISIC - LL/L L Jemod I3%9d Llegzi
60°0F LL02/9LILL que L J8iBAA DO - LL/0L 48mod I9od 128zl
266 L102/9LLL 9z AMH = L1/} 18mod 3%9d 052821
og8l L102/60/4 1 Sr181eBpoop, - £1/0L Jemod 3%9d 61821
16'GlL 210Z/60/L1 S/ POOMUWLIBAA - £ 1L/0L Jemod 3%9d ¢©6L82)
e d 1" L10e/e0/L L DTN =~ LL/OL 13moy I 9Od z26182)
ov'L L102/60/L 1 abieyy eoieg S1Yvd OLNY ATNUIHO  16L8TL
227001 2102160141 Jamoly ypomyinog - Aisjeg S1HVd OLNY ATHENO 161821
L00E £102/80/4L Ja|iel] SUOROBII0D - XBAA USBA JBD S1HVYd OLNY ATHEN0O 161821
¥Z02 LL02/60/L1 L04# BIDIUBA - IO S1Y¥Vd OLNY ATHIMO  LBL8ZL
£9'8.2 2102/60/1 1 9094 SIDIYaA - Saleled S1HVd OLNY ATIZN.0 161821
$6'6€ 2102/60/L1 £ZG# BIOIUBA - piousios jue L jend S1YVd OLNY ATHIHO  16L8ZL
69°0L1 £102/60/L1 OC Lt BIPIYBA - aqnylieyjeg/ioisisey SLYYd OLNV ATHINO 161821
GLe68'L 2102/60/41 Buluueld soinosay Jaie dibslens seoieg Buinsuo) ST 'S NHOP 40 S301440 081821
00°000'% 210219411 L1101 Aoeoonpy aajelsifie] jelepa seoiuss Buginsuo) 0711 'AISdWIA B TTINNOD.O 602821
04°692'L L10Z/9L/LL d1IMTr - ewihjod oed old ONI SIID0TONHOIL NLN  8¥28eh
LS h9 L10Z/08/LL dLMdM - BILOIYD0dA Whnipog TVDINIHD HVLSHLIMON  9L€82L
vLeLL'Z L102/9LLL dLM sejuny - 8jiiojyoodAH wnipog IVOINTIHO YVLISHLIMON  /¥28zL
89° Ly L 21021914 L dLMMY - 8JH0jYo0dAH wnipog TYOINTHO UYLISHIMON  /¥Z82)
99°'210°} L102/8LILL dLMMDD - 8jOJY00dAH Wwnipog TVOINIHO HVYLISHIMON /42821
00°004'} LLOZ/0S/LL 2102 (le4 ‘Bulojuoy WIDSYO SAN vYEQa "ONI SFLVIDOSSY ILION  §LEgZL
ZAVANY 2102191141 LL/0} eoueInsu| 8 I MHOA MIN  9bZ82TL
068521 210Z/60/L1 OH dO - apesbdn weisAg suoydsie . JONYNIZ ADOTONHOIL ONVIONT MIN  €51821
60°92¢ 2102/60/11 LL/Z1 Jau0g/ieplo4 Juswsaiby soueusiuepy ONI'VSN LSOdO3N 061821
00°000°L LLOZ/OE/LL L1/11 ebejsod 1S0OdO3aN A9 SANNHOAN  vLESZL
SLYLL'S LL02/0E/LL L1/Z) |oueInsu| QLYARAVY/AHNT YHYWNO 40 IWNLNN  €LE8TL
£5°120'9 L102/60/L1 L1/ 1 @duBInsU| QL/ARAV/RHT VHYNO 40 TWNLNW 681821
08'42L L10Z/941L GEL# Sj0IYRA - dwe|D/esoH Xajeuey JINDT IONYNILINIVIN TYDISINNN - 6¥2821
0£'6L6 2102/60/L1 ST L BIOIUBA - SBA[BA/SIDIANOD/S[OAIMS dIND3 FONYNILNIVIN TVJIDINNIN - 881821
So'PLe 2102760711 9ZL# SIOIUBA - SaneA (leg dIND3A IONYNALNIVIN TvdIDINNN - 881821
00°LE} 2102/60/11 L1/0} senddng/isiep HILVYM d31dIbNd SISVO NIVINNOW 281821
90°089 L102/60/11 LL/1} ®2neg Buemsuy JOIAYIS ONIYIMSNY Ja0T HIHIOW 981821
50°'86¢ L102/60/11 L1/0} 1ejuay Jepuijhd dv3O B SYO OOMIVY OLSIAON 681821
106 LLOZ/9LILL OH dO - juswesinquiisy juled Aeids Buiumy AFY4430 'MIAIN preseL
LO'9Y L10T/9LILL uswesinquisy [onel Bueaiy sepunoy urunop ATYHH3r HIAIN vHE8TL
GL'6YL LL02/9L/L1 2101 Juswesinquiey esusdxy jeael ) Bugsapy/Buiepy 7300 'HIADZIIN  £¥28TL
0968 LL0Z/9LILL L1/60 Juswesinquiiay ssusdxy [oael | Bupesyy 7307 'YIODZIAN  £vI8Tl
£5°68 LL0Z/9L/LL L1780 Juswesinquiey ssusdx3 [anel| Bugespyeny 30r "YIOZIIAN  £pIsTl
¥.'€92' 2102/60/L1 L1 9# Bl - dwind Josuel | /joay 9SOHMUE] [end SIYOSSIADOV MONML VOILNYIN  $8L8ZL
60758 L102/60/L1 0Z/# 8PIYaA - sdajsaunop jegpoey SIIYOSSIDOV MONML VOILNVIN - ¥8L8ZL
12686 L10Z/08/L L 110z 09Qg-jdeg asesT Juswdinby Buijen JONVNIJ TIVIN - Ziesel
Junotuy ajeq :O_un_._ommm uonoesued | mm>o_QEmtovC®> "ON Y}o8yD

2102 ‘0€-1 JoquusnonN
Wswesingsiq dy
(MDD



(@

(a)]

to)

3@

8i0/

85°202 L10Z/08/LL PAVINN TR SSNY 'SYWOHL  6ze8zi
¥6'LY 2102/60/11 DOB[[BM - LL/0} S0INISS Jaulsu| SNOILYOINNWINOD TYNOILYNITZL  90282)
00°6Z¥ LL0Z/9LILL SL/LIZL-LLILIZ) SOUBUSILIBIN JBUUEBDS %08YD ONI SWALSAS VLvd 3NDINHOIL 252821
00°0€ 210260111 uawesinquiey feael | Buluiel] vayOs SJemispuops HIAINO 'dvdvLl  §0z8eL
0008 2102Z/0g/L1 Asuupy - [emeusy He) z@ 19 ‘iojessdQ uonnquisiq Jsjen Bunuug g0UMS  8zeszl
00 0vi LLOZ/0E/L L 18408l - [eMmauay Ue) ¢ 19 iojeiadQ uonngulsia 49iepn Bupjuug gOuMS 8ecegelL
00'69 L102I08/LL llBpulL - 994 wex3 g epels ‘ojesedp uopnquisid Jojep g0uMS  82¢8ZL
0009 210208711 siileH - femausy pag gg 19 ‘Iojesed uonnqusiq Jeiepn BumuLg 804MS  82£8Z1
0065 230Z/9LLL AejueH - lemausy o) LQ 19 ‘ojeredQ uonnquisia Jerean Bunjuug g0dMS 952821
0066 LL0Z/9LILL lpiewlng - 994 Wexg-ay y Speln ‘ojelsd( UoRNqUISI] JalBAA g08MS 962821
zl'geg L0291 JdLMMINS - SIealpmaIog/spio) eafiung/die |/Bulocy psieinuo) IHYMAYVYH NYINIANIMS 662821
82°LS 2L02/08/LL LLILL 1BAeL] AYYIL'IONVYLS  /2882)
00°GLL 210260711 UIMpog - asusol BuiesuiBuz [euoisssjold  SHIVA4Y HINWNSNOD 0 Ld3a 41TvD 40 ILVIS 20282
9/°690'89  Zl0Z/0E/LL OPIA 1UISIF - 81L-210Z Ad S99 SWybny Je1em alelg NOILYZITVNOD3F 40 ay¥v0d 31VIiS 928zt
£9982'2 2102760711 saljddng 20110 NY1d LIg3u0 S31dVLS  10282)
1g'GLe'L LL02/9L14L weg d3 - syeysegy/sdwe|)/sbumid/adid NOSMOVT - SO AINYIS  $628Z1
117299 LLOZ/0E/LL dLMMdM - Jusweoe|dsy AlelegmoayD wiely IOINYIS TYNDIS  vzegel
1G°€82'L 2102760711 2102 99Q-100 90IAI8S Wiiely seijioe JDINYIS TYNDIS 002821
65'¥0¢ 10208/ stg)sn(y/sbeg yseilieded j9jio1/slemo toded AlddNS IVIMOLINYP VYIS £2€821
65°G06 2102/60/11 dLAMM 80BJEAA - 8JLI0JUS0dAH wnipog 00 VYOINIHD YHY3IS 661821
0L8y L102/60/LL d1lMMDT - Jejdnodausws ) iewiid/edid ONI 13MHVIN SHIANIS 861821
91091 1102/60/L1 L7 - qouy Joogyseyddng Buiues;pjoen doys ONI LIMYVIA SHIANIS 861821
9,19 2102780711 slojoadsuj - xog |00 /188 J8udley ONI 13MHYIA SHIANIS 861821
08'LL 2102/60/L1 £TGH# SIOIUSA - BAfeA jled/sBuni/sBuiysng ONILIMMYIN SHIANIS 861821
¥6'9S 2102180711 L LO# BI0IYBA - 189S JOAIPMBIOG/SIBld ONI LIMYVYIN SHIANIS 861821
96'/9 L102/80/L1 SUBIOHIR|T - PIOD LolsusiXg ONI L3N SHIANIS 861821
9z'6¢ 2102/60/L1 dLATr - sBeg ysed | usiep pajinsia ONI LIMYVYIN SHIANIS  86L82L
6916 £102/60/L1 doys p - JeseasBaqy/sBuniiy/esoH y/iesigrede | fuejess ONILIMHVYIN SHIAONIS 861821
60°62 L102/60/11 Jajiel | Aeidg [ealway) - J8AI808Y YOlH ONIL3MYVYIN SHIANIS 861821
L¥'6EE'L 210280711 spjatd Aeidg yuomynog - sbunid/ede | /selddngpuswap/adid ONI L3MYVYIN SHIANTIS 861821
9£'965'Z L102Z/0E/LL LL/L) s8nQ uoun LZ0L w001 NIZS Lzeset
00°0€L L102/60/11 JuBWIBSINQUADY [BABI] UOHUBALOD YINZIS TAVHOIN 'ONYHOWYS 261821
8L 2102/08/1L L LL/LL [enely 1LOOS ‘NYINY3LIYY  0zesel
08°0.8'% 2102/60/1 ) 81-L10Z Ad }oB1UOD BoUBUBIUIR [BNUUY SNOILNTIOS SALSIND 961821
5G'20¥ L102/60/L1 dLMMY - [esodsiq spljog-oig TUJANYT STUH O¥3YL0d 61821
96'¥22'65  L102/Le/LL spidey JanlS 91.6¢ - speiBdn eo1AIag [eouoalg ANIWIHVYEIA Odd/NAD T8Dd 592821
0€'0€6 2102/08/1 1 ajepdn uejd Jsjsely 18l 8a0) Jeddo) - seoineg Bupsauibug ONI QVLSNYg NOSHI13d  61€82L
06°€8¢'} 2102/08L L aepdn uejd Jeisely Jejep pur Auusp - seolnes Buiesuibug ONI Av.LSNdd NOSYH31dd  6lE82L
00°28's L10Z/8L/1L L1/0L Buissaoold juswied ONI dNOYD SNININWAYY  €528Z)
00059’ LL0Z/9L/LL d1MOD - Jiedey jooy ONIJO0Y 11008 SI¥dvd 2528zl
L2 LL0Z/0E/LL spjal4 Aeidg soe(lep) - LL/L L Jomod 3%9d 8Lesel
Junouly ajeq co_«atowmm uoljoesuel mm>o_QEm\..0Ucm> "ON Mo8yd

L10Z ‘0€-1 JoquianoN
JuswiesIngsiqg dv
(1NN



(w)
()

60)]

(g)

96°€67'86L

8408

sjusWasINgsi(] dY Z10Z J1eqUSAON Je1o ]

2102 ‘0g-1 JaquisroN
uswesIngsig dy
AANN

0g°LeT'L (g) spunjey Jewoisny
90'0G1'L (¢) syuswesinquisy yljeaH sy
Yvily ?v Sjuswssinquiay {edIpsN mm>o_QEw
£G'ZEY 2LL0Z/9LiLL dLMOD - oedjiepn gI1/denS/YousIp/SaA0IDAUBINIOM ONI 0D AddNS DIML03 1T ITUM 292821
9€°€0¢'9 LL0Z/9L/LL SuBjoL0a(3 - 1899 AJsjegS seld o1y ONI 00 AddNS OIMLDI13 ITIM 292824
$1°'862'8 2L02/80/L 1L LL/01 leng MNVE XIm 143
$G'8L€ 2102/80/LL CEL# BOIYBA - J0JOIN HoBIY SIIYISNANI 00AM 812821
00°02¢ L102/60/41 eMeue] - 6102/1£/10-8102/10/20 diysiaquuapy NOILYYIQ3d INFANOYIANT Y31V 21Z82L
9z'10g L102/60/11 L1/0L 8uoyd ANYAINOO INOHJIT1IL ONVOTOA 912821
08'8S%' L L102/08/LL L1/0L ssuoyd |80 SSTIIYIM NOZINAA  pEESEL
Legze'L 2102/80/L1 L1/0} Buidwing Jioniesay s lojuny ALIMOHLNY Y3MOd % ¥3LVM VOILN 612821
LE26E'T LL0Z/9L/LL I+ AWear] - nuued asn jeoads IOINYTS 183404 vasn  19zgel
LeZ6E'e LL0Z/9L/LL ye81) Jeaeag - julied asn |eoadg I0INY3S LSIHOL4 YasSn  L9zeel
88718 LLOZ/SLILL uieg d3 - SSAjeA Jeold Y008 3IN1g vsSn  09z8eL
LEB8L L 2102/60/L1 dLIMMY - 8podioejgusiey Hd gen M00g3In1gvsn  ¥izszl
8¢y 2102/60/L1 d1MOD - Jayngeg jusbesy ¥00d 3n19 vSn  ¥1z8zi
{G2¥19) 2102/60/11 00 - BABA |lBg Peienioy - uiney Mood anigvsn  yiegel
19°L¥E 2102/60/L1 00 - dwejpest/sissp Ajgeg/sanoln Moo8 3nig vsn  vieszl
0000Z'2 L102/60/11 PUISI JusWssassy saloy Ul Al - $994 jueby jeosi4 SOAS LSNYL JH0OD MNVE SN €L282L
yv102'2 2102/0€/1L g uosdwoyy 99 - 67 S8 ONI VSN YVAINN  £££821
09'Lt 210208/ L1711 Buiddiys JOINYIS 1304vd AILINN 2Ee8el
ov'LL L10T/9L/LL L1/0} Buiddiyg FOIAYES 130UVd GILINN - 652821
00'¢sL L102/60/L1 OJI08f[_A - L1/0} SOIMSS I191BAA LOIMLSIO ALIILN ONENd NOINN 012821
05261 L102/60/LL SPY JuaWiniosy [[i/il d.LM ‘Il UeDLIO8|g LYHOOW3IA NOINN 602821
eTBLL 210Z/08/L1 LL/LL [enel] YHLYIE “THHY3ANN  Leeset
0668 £10Z/60/L L saljddng Bugsapy ONI 3YOLS TVHINIO S1vaML 802821
1G°9PE LL0Z/9L/LL doys d3 - sigaym HOIND/SIenly/sieuile | /sdwel/sINN/SIBYseAp SIIYISNANI 004IL 952821
LWes 210Z/60/L1 doyg Tf - SIBUSBAN/SMBI0S/S)OgG/SINN SAMISNANI 0041L 202821
8¥°OpG L10Z/0E/LL 1osfo14 Juswaoe|dey suljedid Vg YoESY d3 - MaIASY dddMS SISIHAHALNT NIVINNOW ¥IANNHL  0£E8Z)
junowy ajeq :omuatowmﬂ uopoesuel | mm>o_aEmtovcm> "ON Yo8yD



DATE: December 13, 2017

TO: Dave Eggerton, General Manager %

FROM: Jeffrey Me@g}e\o’cor of Administratkive Services

SUBJECT: Report on the Write-Off of Uncollectible Accounts Receivable for the
period of June 1, 2017 through November 30, 2017

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Motion: / adopting Resolution No. 2017- approving
accounts receivable write-off of accounts exceeding $2,500 per account.

SUMMARY:

Financial Management Policy No. 5.05, “Uncollectible Accounts Receivable,” provides
authorization and guidelines for the write-off of individual accounts receivable that are
not deemed bona fide, or valid. Per policy, any uncollectible account in excess of
$2,500 must have the approval of the Board of Directors. All uncollectible accounts
receivable that are written-off will be reported to the Board of Directors on a semi-
annual basis.

Attachment A lists accounts with balances over $2,500 that are deemed uncollectible
and have been placed for collection due to non-response from in-house collection
efforts. The total of Attachment A is $5,812.94. Per policy, Attachment B is the semi-
annual report to the Board of Directors listing all uncollectible accounts receivable write
offs under the $2,500 threshold for a total of $26,942.62.

All bad debt accounts that are not written off due to bankruptcy are placed with a local
collection agency in the absence of other remedies. Recovery rate for this reporting
period is approximately 5.3% net to the District after collection fees.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

The write-off of these accounts would result in a reduction in current assets in the
amount of $32,755.66 and more fairly present the District’s financial position.

Aftachments: 1. Financial Management Policy No. 5.05, Uncollectible Accounts Receivable
2. Resolution 2017- . Approving Accounts Receivable Write-Off for Accounts Exceeding $2,500
per account
3. Atltachment A, Accounts Receivable Write Offs More Than $2,500
4. Atftachment B, Accounts Receivable Write Offs Less Than 32 500



- Policy Title: Uncollectible Accounts Recejvable : : Adopled /0804
Policy Number: Financial Management Policy 5.05 " Revised 06/21/11 (Res. 01 £ -38)

5.05.1

5.05.2

5.053

Amended Director Title Change 12/2/14

Purpose

To provide. authorization and guidelines for the write-off of uncollectible accounts
receivable,

Policy

The Director of Administrative Services may write off uncollectible accounts
receivable that do. not exceed $2,500 (per customer account) after review and wiitten,
concurrence by the General Manager that such accounts are uncollectible. If the
amount in question exceeds $2,500, the proposed write-off must have the approval of
the Board of Directors. All uncollectible accounts receivable write-offs vill be
reported to the Board of Directors on a semi-annual basis, "

General Provisions

On occasion, certain accounts receivable due and owing Calaveras County Water
District become uncollectible after all reasonable effort is expended to effect collection.
There are also situations where accounts are such a size that more money would be
expended to collect the debt itself, The Director of Administrative Services for
Calaveras County Water District is in a position to thoroughly evaluate the feasibility of
collecting past due accounts and to make a decision as o whether to further the effort.

Page 1 of 1



RESOLUTION NO. 2017 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

APPROVING UNCOLLECTIBLE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
WRITE-OFF FOR ACCOUNTS EXCEEDING $2,500 PER ACCOUNT

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
established Financial Management Policy 5.05 “Uncollectible Accounts Receivable” for
the purpose of providing authorization and guidelines for the write-off of uncollectible
accounts receivable; and

WHEREAS, the Section 5.05.2 of said policy states “If the amount in question exceeds
$2,500 (per customer account), the proposed write-off must have the approval of the
Board of Directors;” and

WHEREAS, the District has one account referred to collections in excess of $2,500 per
account for a total of $5,812.94.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors does hereby
authorize the Director of Administrative Services to write-off $5,812.94 in uncollectible
accounts receivable, as set forth in Attachment A, attached hereto and made a part
hereof, and continue collection efforts to recover said amount.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December, 2017 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:
CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
President
Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Mona Walker

Clerk to the Board



Attachment A
Calaveras County Water District
Uncollectible Accounts Receivable as of November 30, 2017

For the Period of June 1, 2017 through November 30, 2017

Accounts Receivable More than $2,500

Account No Post Date Amount
000610 6/30/2017 5,812.94
TOTAL: 5,812.94

1of1



Attachment B

Calaveras County Water District
Uncollectible Accounts Receivable as of November 30, 2017
For the Period of June 1, 2017 through November 30, 2017

Accounts Receivable Write Offs Less than $2,500

Account No Post Date Amount
000585 6/30/2017 55.00
000625 6/30/2017 324.00
000626 6/30/2017 50.00
000633 6/30/2017 20.00

001041-000 10/20/2017 2,030.75

001648-000 71512017 53.00

002059-000 10/20/2017 166.86

005236-000 612712017 148.37

007895-000 6/27/2017 42.48

008208-000 8/16/2017 1,408.35

012996-000 10/25/2017 16.47

013024-000 10/20/2017 1,938.40

016765-000 71512017 667.39

018977-000 8/16/2017 38.41

020219-000 11/30/2017 282.72

020375-000 6/27/2017 552.46

023371-000 10/31/2017 300.00

023836-000 71282017 531.99

026899-000 712812017 449.06

029250-000 10/25/2017 78.49

028978-000 71612017 24376

030796-000 10/20/2017 168.34

030908-000 712812017 1,131.10

031558-000 8/16/2017 292.67

032171-000 11/30/2017 304.95

0344438-000 9/19/2017 62.46

035080-000 612712017 141.95

035146-000 71512017 166.97

035275-000 11/30/2017 177.92

035449-000 8/16/2017 248.36

035566-000 71612017 419.30

035567-000 71612017 773.82

035692-000 8/31/2017 91.99

036193-000 9/18/2017 98.42

036427-000 8/16/2017 343.05

036724-000 10/20/2017 348.27

036931-000 9/19/2017 383.42

036954-000 6/12/2017 141.95

037010-000 8/16/2017 396.29

037019-000 8/16/2017 45.89

037199-000 712812017 107.88

1of2



Attachment B

Calaveras County Water District
Uncollectible Accounts Receivable as of November 30, 2017

For the Period of June 1, 2017 through November 30, 2017

Accounts Receivable Write Offs Less than $2,500

Account No Post Date Amount
037352-000 11/30/2017 181.12
037416-000 71612017 2,043.28
037423-000 71512017 111.63
037428-000 6/27/2017 294.98
037457-000 712812017 1,981.33
037460-000 10/20/2017 988.19
037500-000 9/19/2017 1,523.87
037725-000 10/20/2017 556.21
037736-000 8/16/2017 453.48
037767-000 71512017 140.05
037872-000 71612017 195.34
037879-000 712812017 228.58
037991-000 10/20/2017 488.85
037998-000 10/20/2017 190.59
038001-000 71512017 302.30
038120-000 8/31/12017 411.89
038467-000 10/20/2017 626.15
038514-000 11/30/2017 384.78
038575-000 1111772017 606.04

TOTAL: 26,942.62

20f2




DATE: December 13, 2017
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Dave Eggerton, General Managerzyg;—

SUBJECT: Eliminating Board of Directors Policy No. 7 — Use of Old Board Room

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Motion: / adopting Resolution No. 2017-__ approving to
eliminate the Board of Directors Policy No. 7 —~ Use of Old Board Room.

BACKGROUND:

At the District’s past administrative facility at 423 E. St. Charles Street, the District
allowed certain non-profit groups to use the old Board Room for their meetings. Over
time there were frequent requests to use the old Board Room for this purpose, and in
2012 the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 2012-69 establishing a policy as
to its permitted use by outside organizations.

With the recent sale of the old administrative office and Board Room to the Calaveras
County Resource Conservation District, Policy No. 7 is no longer relevant. Moreover,
with the configuration of the new office and its alarm system and desire to avoid the
expense and administrative burden of replicating this past practice and potential
constitutional issues involved in providing limited access to outside groups, staff
recommends the Board proceed in eliminating Policy No. 7.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

None at this time.

Attachments: 1. Current Board of Directors Policy 7 — Use of Board Room
2. Resolution Eliminating Policy



Policy Title: Use of District Board Room Adopted 09/26112
Policy Number: Tab 7 in Board Policy Binder (Res. 2012:69)

Purpose: District Board Room Use

The facility designated as the Board Room of the Calaveras County Water
District (CCWD) Board of Directors is designed as a facility to serve as the
principal meeting place of the CCWD Board of Directors, auxiliary conference
and training area for District staff, and for the occasional use of community based
groups within Calaveras Gounty. The use of the facility is primarily for the District
Board and personnel, whose needs shall always prevail. The General Manager
shall administer the following guidelines related to the use of the Board Room by
outside groups:

1. Not-for-profit community groups may be permitted to use the facility at no
charge. These groups include, but are not necessarily limited to, Calaveras 4H,
Calaveras Future Farmers of America, etc.

While the Board Room shall not generally be available for use by for-profit
organizations, the General Manager may authorize such use if it does not
amount to an inappropriate “gift" of public funds or expose CCWD to potential
scrutiny for improperly endorsing political candidates or issues. No elective
official nor any employee of his or her office nor-any person appointed to or
employed by any public office or agency may use or authorize the use of any of
CCWD facilities, directly or indirectly, for the purpose of assisting a campaign for
election of any person to any office or for the promotion of or opposition to any
ballot proposition.

All requests for Board Room use require completion and submittal of an
“Application for Use of Meeting Room” form.

2. The Board Room may also be used by Calaveras County Water District
bargaining units under the terms of the established MOU's.

3. The General Manager shall have the authority and responsibility to
approve or disapprove all requests for the use of the facility which meet the
guidelines of this policy. .

4, The maximum occupancy of the facility is 64 persons and shall be strictly
observed.
5. In order to maintain the tranquility of the surrounding residential area, the

Board Room shall normally not be available between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and
7:30 a.m. The General Manager may waive the strict interpretation of this
guideline. ’

1/2



Policy Title: Use of District Board Room Adopted 09/26/12
Policy Number: Tab 7 in Board Policy Binder (Res. 2012:9)

6. The facilities shall be left in the same clean condition they were in before
the group’s meeting began.

7. The group using the facility shall be financially responsible for any damage
that may occur during the use of the facility and/or appurtenant equipment.

8. All heaﬁng/air' conditioning thermostats and interior lights, including those
in the restrooms shall be turned off and any appliances used shall be unplugged
following use of the facility.

9. The group using the facility shall be responsible for locking the outside
door before leaving.

10.  No alcoholic beverages shall be consumed on the premises, including

beer or wine. Coffee, tea, and other non-alcoholic beverages are permitted, and
- with prior approval from the General Manager, “finger food” may also be
permitted.

1. Smoking is not allowed anywhere in the building.

12. Keys will be provided and shall be returned pursuant to arrangement with
District personnel. :

13.  Any group that misuses the facility will be denied further use of the Board
Room.

14.  All potential users of the facility must complete an application for Board
Room use and supply the appropriate insurance indemnification.

212



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
APPLICATION FOR USE OF MEETING ROOM

Complete and return to:  Calaveras County Water District (CCWD)
PO Box 846
423 E. St. Charles Street
San Andreas, CA 95249

MEETING ROOM SHALL NOT BE RESERVED WITHOUT A COMPLETED APPLICATION.

Date of Application:

Applicant's Name:

Phone:

Applicant's Address:

Name of Organization Requesting Use:

Non-Profit
County / Government
Other

Meeting Date(s) requested (give actual dates):

Estimated attendance: Meeting Time: am/pmto am/pm

Type of Meeting
(lecture/discussion):

Attached to this application is an Insurance and liability clause, which clause is hereby incorporated by
reference herein and made part of this application.

APPLICANT HAS READ AND UNDERSTANDS THE CCWD'S MEETING ROOM POLICY AND
REGULATIONS AND ACCEPTS FULL RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ALL PROVISIONS
SET FORTH HEREIN.

Signature of Representative

FOR CCWD USE

Applicant Approved: CCWD Representative;
(Date)

General Manager Approval (if required):

Comments:

Dated 9/26/12



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

ATTACHMENT TO APPLICATION FOR MEETING ROOWM USE

Date of Application:

Applicant's Name:

Name of Organization:

Phone:

!néurance and Liability:

1. During use of the meeting room, the applicant shall maintain comprehensive general liability
insurance, including coverage for property damage of at least $250,000; broad form general liability
" coverage (combined single limit) of at least $1,000,000 and workers compensation at statutory limits.
CCWD shall be designated as an additional named insured on certification of insurance submitted with
said application.

2. The applicant shall hold harmiess and indemnify the CCWD and its Directors, employees and
representatives from any and all claims or demands whatsoever, including costs, expenses and
reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred on account thereof, that may be made by any person whatsoever for
personal injury or damage to property occasioned by the acts or omissions of the applicant or the
applicant's officers, members, employees or representative.

Dated 9/26/12



RULES & REGULATIONS
For Use of Board Room by Organizations

Calaveras County Water District Board Room
423 E. Saint Charles Street
San Andreas

1. Organizations who desire to use the board room are required to complete the
application form and receive approvalfor use.

2. Calaveras County Water District (CCWD) activities take precedence over the
allocation of board room use.

3. Organizations shall establish necessary measures to conform to the following
regulation of the board room:

&

The maximum occupancy of the facility is 64 persons and shall be
strictly observed.

Supetvision — building shall be made available only to responsible
adult groups that will provide supervision of all participants and
activities. Adult sponsors are responsible for the behavior of the
group as well as for the protection of the building and its contents.

Smoking, Drinking of Alcohol and Gooking is Prohibited in the
board room. No alcoholic beverages shall be consumed on the
premises, including beer or wine. Coffee, tea, and other non-
alcoholic beverages are permitted, and with prior approval from the
General Manager, “finger food” may also be permitted.

Firearms are Prohibited and -not authorized on the premises
unless they carried by a safety officer.

Clean-Up - organizations shall be responsible for cleaning up any
litter or refuse left as a direct result of their activities and placed in
outside dumpster. This includes dishes, garbage, paper, tidiness of
rooms, etc.

Room Set-Up and Clean-Up — organizations are responsible for
their own set-up of chairs, tables, etc. and must return the room to
the condition in which it was found before leaving.

Vehicles — vehicles must be legally parked and not parked in' the
apartment complex.

Dated 09/26/12
1/2



e Compliance Failure - the group using the facility shall be
financially responsible for any damage that may occur during the
use of the facility and/or appurtenant equipment. Any group that
misuses the facility will be. denied further use of the Board Room.

e Keys will be provided and shall be returned pursuant fo
arrangement with District personnel.

e Cancellations — any cancellation the board room reservation must
be made to CCWD personnel as soon as possible.

End

Dated 09/26/12
2/2



RESOLUTION 2017 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

ELIMINATING BOARD POLICY FOR USE OF DISTRICT’S OLD BOARD ROOM

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
established a policy by Resolution No. 2012-69 for the Use of the District’s Old Board
Room; and

WHEREAS, the policy was specific to the use of the District's Board Room located at
423 E. St. Charles Street in San Andreas; and

WHEREAS, the District no longer owns or operates the old administrative facilities and
Board Room at 423 E. St. Charles Street.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the CALAVERAS
COUNTY WATER DISTRICT hereby approves to eliminate the Board of Directors
Policy No. 7 — Use of the Board Room and rescinds Resolution No. 2012-69 adopted
September 26, 2012.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December, 2017 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:
CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
President
Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Mona Walker

Clerk to the Board



DATE: December 13, 2017

TO: Dave Eggerton, General Managerfﬁ/
FROM: Joel Metzger, Manager of External Affairs, Conservation & Grants
SUBJECT: Designating the General Manager as Authorized Agent to Execute and

Submit a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) Update Grant Application,
and other Assurances, to Cal-OES under HMGP DR-4301

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Motion: / adopt Resolution No. 2017-__ Designating the
General Manager as Authorized Agent to Execute and Submit a Local Hazard Mitigation
Plan (LHMP) Update Grant Application, and other Assurances, to Cal-OES under
HMGP DR-4301.

SUMMARY:

A Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) is designed to reduce or eliminate long-term risk
to people and property from hazards. Pursuant to the requirements of the Disaster
Mitigation Act of 2000 the District is required to update its plan every five (5) years with
the goal of making the County and its residents less vulnerable to future hazardous
events. A current Local Hazard Mitigation Plan is also required to ensure that the
District remains eligible for the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA) pre-
disaster mitigation and hazard mitigation grant programs.

On July 28, 2017, the Calaveras County Water District staff was notified by the
California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) that its LHMP Update Notice of
Interest (NOI) was determined to be an eligible Hazard Mitigation Grant Program
(HGMP) activity and Cal OES invited the District to submit a full grant application that
seeks funding to update the District's LHMP. If awarded the grant will provide seventy-
five percent (75%) of the project funding, with the District required to provide a twenty-
five percent (25%) local match.

The HMGP DR-4301 application requires the District’s Board of Directors designate an
Authorizing Agent to sign and execute the grant application, a funding match
commitment letter, and all other forms of necessary assurances. These documents will
be submitted to Cal-OES with the full grant application which is due on January 1, 2018.

172



FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

The update of the District's Local Hazard Mitigation Plan is included in the adopted FY
2017-18 Water Resources budget. Staff issued a Request for Proposal for the plan
update and the lowest responsive bidder was submitted by AMEC Foster Wheeler,
which was awarded a $35,874 agreement. If the District were to receive the HMGP
grant, its financial responsibility for the project would be a twenty-five percent (25%)
local match, or $8,969. However this $8,969 is less than the original project estimate of
$35,000 that was included in the FY 2017-18 budget.

Attachment: Resolution Designating the General Manager as Authorized Representative

212



RESOLUTION NO. 2017 -

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

DESIGNATING THE GENERAL MANAGER AS AUTHORIZED AGENT
TO EXECUTE AND SUBMIT A LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN UPDATE
GRANT APPLICATION DR-4301 TO CAL-OES

WHEREAS, the Calaveras County Water District recognizes the threat that natural
hazards pose to people and property within our community; and

WHEREAS, undertaking hazard mitigation actions will reduce the potential for harm to
people and property from future hazard occurrences; and

WHEREAS, an adopted Local Hazard Mitigation Plan is required as a condition of
future funding for mitigation projects under multiple Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) pre- and post-disaster mitigation grant programs; and

WHEREAS, CCWD staff is applying for assistance through the FEMA Hazard Mitigation
Grant Program (HMGP), DR-4301, to help fund the update of the District’s Local Hazard
Mitigation Plan Update; and

WHEREAS, the HMGP application requires Board designation of an Authorizing Agent
to sign and execute said grant application; and

WHEREAS, the Board authorizes the execution of a Funding Match Commitment Letter
authorizing a local Twenty-five percent (25%) funding match requirement of $8,969 of
the estimated total cost of $35,874 for the District's Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
Update.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Calaveras
County Water District designates the General Manager, or designee, as the Applicant’s
Agent and to execute and submit a Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Grant
Application and funding match commitment, and such other documents and assurance
as necessary to obtain grant funding under this application.

/

/

112



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that funding for the District’s cost match is included in the
adopted FY 2017-18 Water Resources Department budget in (Fund 101).

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 13th day of December, 2017 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:
CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
President
Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Mona Walker

Clerk to the Board

212



DATE: December 13, 2017

TO: Dave Eggerton, General Manager ,.9%'
FROM: Jeffrey Mey@ﬁ% rector of Administrative Services

SUBJECT: Presentation of the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year
Ending June 30, 2017 by Richardson & Company, LLP

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

Motion: / to receive and file the Audited Financial Statements
for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017 by the auditing firm of Richardson &
Company, LLP.

SUMMARY:

Staff is pleased to present the Independent Auditor's Report and Financial Statements
for the Calaveras County Water District for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017,
completed by Richardson & Company, LLP, Certified Public Accountants. The purpose
of the report is to provide the Board of Directors, District staff, rate-payers, bondholders
and other interested parties with useful information concerning the District's operations
and financial position. The District is responsible for the accuracy, completeness, and
fairness of the data presented in this report.

There are four main sections of this report:

Basic Financial Statements - Includes the Balance Sheets, the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Positions, the Statements of Cash Flow, the
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position (Assessment Districts), and the Notes to the Basic
Financial Statements.

Required Supplementary Information — The Schedules of Proportional Share of Net
Pension Liability and Contributions to the Pension Plan, and the Schedule of Funding
Progress for Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB).

Other Supplementary [nformation — The Combining Schedule of Fiduciary Net Position,
and the Debt Service Coverage Ratios for the Water and Sewer Funds.

Compliance Report — Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting, Compliance, and other matters based on the audit.

172



Audit Opinion

At the conclusion of the audit Richardson & Company issued an opinion that the
District's Financial Statements, for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2017, present fairly
the respective financial position of the business-type activities of each major fund and
the fiduciary funds of the District in all material respects in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and government accounting standards.

Brian Nash, CPA, of Richardson & Company will make a presentation to the Board and
will answer any questions the Board or general public may have regarding the Audited
Financial Statements for FY 2016-17.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS:

None.

Attachment: Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2017

212



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2017



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Independent Auditor's Report.......cocceeevcinncnnvcnnnnnn. s eere e st st s e st ee et Sht Rt eae bt s e s st e at e n et sorastsate 1
Management’s DiSCusSion and ANAIYSIS ..oeccirerrirreirrieerestriesseresssnsenresinssescssssssersesssessnesssassansesanssnssesssssssasssssmsenses 3

Basic Financial Statements

BALANCE SHEEE ..ucevreeeceeeierererrerrcrentnseertreeseereeeressetssstet st sssaesestnsasssssasentssssssssssssestnsrsssasssasensasstasssssossnssesessssasessssnassssas
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statement 0F Cash FIOWS ..ottt ssesereesesesessesssesessessenssaonrasstsssssessesssessntarmssensscnaeas
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position — Assessment District Agency Fund
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

Regquired Supplementary Information

Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Schedule of
Contributions to the Pension Plan — Miscellaneous Plan (Unaudited) ........ccvcceveeereerneceseneecrenennneesseresrenseremnene 42
Schedule of Funding Progress for the Other Postemployment Benefits Plan (Unaudited).....c.coococveerrceeecrenrcnenconinens 43

Other Supplementary Information

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position — Assessment District Agency Fund......ooveveeeevneecesnenesvensnnnens 44
Debt Service Coverage Ratio — Water FUNG.....c.cvciiiririrereniest ittt st sse et esessensossssassssassses 46
Debt Service Coverage Ratio — Sewer FUNG.......ooiiciiicirecneercntneestrssiertsnsret e seesecetsesteseseetsaesssessssassossssssessessenes 47



550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210

. IC H A RD S O N Sacramento, California 95825
\ & COMPANY v, o

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Calaveras County Water District
San Andreas, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities, each major fund and the
fiduciary funds of the Calaveras County Water District (the District) as of and for the year ending June 30, 2017,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, and the State Controller’s Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities, each major fund and the fiduciary funds of the District as of June
30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as well as
accounting systems prescribed by the State Controller’s Office and state regulations governing special districts.



To the Board of Directors
Calaveras County Water District

Other Matters
Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the District’s 2016 financial statements, and we expressed unmodified audit opinions on
those audited financial statements in our report dated October 20, 2016. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, is consistent in all material
respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis, schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability, schedule of contributions to the pension
plans and schedule of funding progress of the other postemployment benefits plan, as listed in the accompanying
table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the District’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary information listed in the table of contents is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 6, 2017 on our
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations and contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

A ehrarstar>o b Waﬂé{, LAP

December 6, 2017



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Calaveras County Water District's (“the District”) Audited Financial Statements
provides management’s discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance for the period
ending June 30, 2017. Readers are encouraged to consider the information presented here as
complementary to the information contained in the accompanying financial statements.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is presented under the following headings:

Organization and Business

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements
Financial Analysis of the District

Capital Assets and Debt Administration
Economic Condition and Outlook

Requests for Information

e ¢ © o @& o

ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

The District has operated continuously since 1946 under the laws of the State of California as a county
water district for the purpose of providing water and wastewater services to the residents and businesses
of Calaveras County. The District is a political subdivision of the State of California and is not a part of,
or under the control of, Calaveras County.

Under State law, the District has broad general powers over the use of the water within its boundaries,
including the right of eminent domain, authority to acquire, control, distribute, store, spread, sink, treat,
purify, reclaim, process and salvage any water for beneficial use, to provide sewer service, to sell treated
or untreated water, to acquire or construct hydroelectric facilities and sell the power and energy
produced to public agencies or public utilities engaged in the distribution of power, to contract with the
United States, other political subdivisions, public utilities, or other persons, and, subject to Article XIITA
of the California State Constitution, to levy taxes for improvements.

The District is located in the central Sierra Nevada foothills, approximately 100 miles east of San
Francisco and 60 miles southeast of Sacramento. The District’s boundaries encompass approximately
1,037 square miles of land ranging from the San Joaquin Valley to the Sierra Nevada mountains. With
elevations ranging from 200 feet in the west to over 8,000 feet in the east, the District’s facilities cover a
diverse geographical range with numerous water, wastewater and hydroelectric projects.

The District currently provides water service to approximately 13,063 residential and commercial
customer accounts in five water service areas. With the exception of the Wallace service area, the
District uses surface water from the Mokelumne, Calaveras and Stanislaus rivers to service its
customers. Wallace customers are served by groundwater pumped from wells owned and operated by
the District. The District also operates and maintains five major wastewater service areas that provide
sanitary sewer services to approximately 4,844 customers.

In addition to water and wastewater operations, the District owns hydroelectric facilities inclusive of
major dams, reservoirs, tunnels and generation facilities which are governed and licensed by the Federal



Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) and operated by other entities, and aside from augmenting
revenues these assets are not addressed in this report.

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The District is a proprietary entity and uses enterprise fund accounting to report its activities for
financial statement purposes in accordance with the Government Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”). Proprietary funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting and account for
activities in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The intent of the governing body is that the
costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed primarily
through user rates, fees, and charges.

The Audited Financial Statements provide readers with a broad overview of the District’s finances, and
include the following four sections: the Basic Financial Statements, the Required Supplementary
Information, Other Supplementary Information, and the Compliance Report (see below for further
details). Another key component of the Audit is this section, Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

REQUIRED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The required financial statements include the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows, which when taken in its totality offer both
short and long-term financial information about the District’s activities.

The Balance Sheet includes all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred
inflows, which provide information about the nature, and amounts, of investments in assets and
obligations to District creditors. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
accounts for current year’s revenues and expenses and measures the District’s operations over the past
year, and can be used to determine the extent to which the District has successfully recovered its costs
through its rates, fees, facility capacity charges, and other charges.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the District’s cash receipts and payments
during the reporting period, as well as net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, and
financing activities, while excluding such non-cash accounting measures as the depreciation of assets.
The statement explains where cash came from, where cash was used, and the change in the cash balance
during the reporting period.

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Notes to the Basic Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements. The Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements are an integral part of, and can be found immediately following, the financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Basic Financial Statements also present certain required supplemental information. This includes a
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, a Schedule of Contributions
fo the Pension Plan, a Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position Assessment District Agency
Fund, and the Debt Service Coverage Ratios for the Water and Sewer Funds.



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT

The District analyzes changes in its major funds (water, sewer and public financing authority) “in total.”
For the next reporting period, fiscal year 2017-18, the District will consider analyzing changes in each
major fund as well as “in total.” Until that change occurs, the financial analysis of the funds are “in total.”

Below are some of the key financial highlights for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017 and how they
compare to the prior fiscal year (FY 2015-16). The source documents for the following condensed tables
(A-1 through A-7) can be found in the Basic Financial Statements. A detailed analysis of the tables’
categories and year-to-year changes follows each table.

e The District’s Net Position, total assets and deferred outflows less total liabilities and deferred
inflows, increased by $4.1 million

¢ Operating Revenues increased by $0.4 million

» Non-operating Revenues, led by higher property tax revenues, increased by $0.5 million

*  Operating Expenses increased by $1.0 million

» Non-operating Expenses decreased by $0.1 million

» Capital assets, net of depreciation, were $109.6 million, a $1.3 million increase

+  Long-term liabilities, as reported in Note D, decreased 0.9%, or $0.1 million

BALANCE SHEETS

The District’s condensed balance sheets are displayed below:
Table A-1
Condensed Balance Sheets
(in millions)
As of June 30

Dollar Percent

2017 2016 Change Change
Current assets b 134 h 13.0 $ 04 3.08%
Noncurrent assets 243 21.8 2.5 11.47%
Other noncurrent and OPEB assets 1.2 0.7 0.5 71.43%
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 109.6 108.3 1.3 1.20%
Deferred outflows ofresources 3.0 1.3 1.7 130.77%
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 151.5 145.1 64 4.41%
Current liabilities 4.1 4.6 (0.5) -10.87%
Noncurrent liabilities 20.0 169 3.1 18.34%
Deferred inflows ofresources 04 0.7 (0.3) -42.86%
Net position 127.0 1229 4.1 3.34%
Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position 151.5 145.1 64 441%

Detail of net position

Net investment in capital assets 100.7 99.2 1.5 1.51%
Restricted for expansion and construction 19.5 15.7 3.8 24.20%
Restricted for debt service 0.7 0.7 0.0 0.00%
Unrestricted 6.1 73 1.2y -16.44%
Total net position: 3 127.0 $ 122.9 $ 4.1 3.34%




Current Assets
Includes unrestricted cash and investments, receivables, inventory, and prepaid expenses.

As of June 30, 2017, current assets totaled $13.4 million, $0.4 million higher than the prior year.

Noncurrent Assets
Includes restricted cash and investments, and other receivables.

As of June 30, 2017, noncurrent assets totaled $24.3 million, which is $2.5 million higher than FY 2015-
16. The two main categories, restricted cash and investments, experienced the largest increases as
collections of restricted revenue outpaced spending.

Other Noncurrent and OPEB Assets
Includes Other Post-Employment Benefits (“OPEB”) assets.

Other noncurrent and OPEB assets totaled $1.2 million, a $0.5 million increase from the prior year. For
more information on OPEB see Note J of the Notes fo the Basic Financial Statements.

Net Capital Assets
Includes property, plants, equipment, and construction in progress, net of accumulated depreciation.

As of June 30, 2017, net capital assets totaled $109.6. This is $1.3 million more than FY 2015-16,
mainly due to the capital projects described on page 12, offset by depreciation.

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows of resources are classified as a consumption of net assets that are applicable to a
Jfuture reporting period.

Deferred outflows of resources totaled $3.0 million. The increase of $1.7 million in deferred outflows is
related to the CalPERS pension plan and is mainly due to lower investment earnings by the cost sharing
pool in which the District participates. For more information on pension liability, see Note I of the
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Current Liabilities
Liabilities that are due within one year are considered current liabilities. They include accounts
payable, accrued liabilities, and the current portion of long-term liabilities.

As of June 30, 2017, current liabilities totaled $4.1 million, $0.5 million lower than the prior year. This
is due primarily to a decrease in the current portion of long-term liabilities and an interfund payable
from the Water Fund to the Public Financing Authority to finance a short-term cash deficit.

Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities are liabilities net of current portion. They include long-term debt and loans due
after one year and net pension liability.

As of June 30, 2017, noncurrent liabilities totaled $20.0 million, $3.1 million higher than the prior year.
Primary contributors include the 2016 USDA water revenue bond debt and an increase in net pension



liability of $1.9 million, which was mostly the result of lower investment earnings of the cost sharing
pool in which the District participates.

Deferred Inflows of Resources
An acquisition of resources that is applicable to a future reporting period, or deferred pension inflows.

Deferred inflows of resources totaled $0.4 million, $0.3 million less than FY 2015-16. For more
information on the pension plan, see Note I of the Nofes to the Basic Financial Statements.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The table below displays a condensed version of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position for the year ending June 30, 2017. The District’s Net Position in 2017 increased from
$122.9 million to $127.0 million, or $4.1 million.

Table A-2
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
(in millions)

As of June 30

Dollar Percent

2017 2016 Change Change
Operating revenues $ 12.2 $ 11.8 $ 04 3.39%
Nonoperating revenues 4.1 3.6 0.5 13.89%
Total revenues 16.3 154 0.9 5.84%
Operating expenses 14.7 13.7 1.0 7.30%
Depreciation 3.8 3.8 0.0 0.00%
Nonoperating expenses 0.3 04 (0.1) -25.00%
Total expenses 18.8 17.9 0.9 5.03%
Net (Loss) income before capital contributions (2.5) (2.5) (0.0) 0.00%
Expansion fees 0.7 1.4 0.7) -50.00%
Capital renovation and replacement (R&R) fees 4.4 43 0.1 2.33%
Other capital contributions 0.8 0.6 02 33.33%
Ebbetts Pass Reach 3a Pipeline (USDA) Grant 0.7 0.0 0.7 100.00%
Total capital contributions and transfers 6.6 6.3 03 4.76%
Change in net position 4.1 3.8 03 7.89%
Net position at beginning of year 1229 119.1 3.8 3.19%
Net positionatendofyear §  127.0 § 1229 3 4.1 3.34%




Operating Revenues
Operating revenues account for approximately seventy-five percent (75%) of the District's revenues.
The majority of the revenues come from water sales, including base rates and consumptive revenues.

Table A-3
Operating Revenues
(in millions)

As of June 30
Dollar Percent
2017 2016 Change Change
Water sales and sewer charges hY 11.7 $ 11.3 $ 0.4 3.54%
Water and sewer fees 0.5 0.5 0.0 0.00%
Total operating revenues 3 122 3 11.8 3 04 3.39%

A growth in new accounts and increased customer water consumption in FY 2016-17 led to a $0.4
million increase in operating revenues over the prior fiscal year.

Nonoperating Revenues
Nonoperating revenues include property taxes, hydroelectric power sales, and investment income.

Nonoperating revenues increased $0.5 million, from $3.6 million in FY 2015-16 to $4.1 million in FY
2016-17. Increased hydroelectric generation, slightly higher interest rates, and property tax growth all
contributed to the overall increase in nonoperating revenues.

Table A-4
Nonoperating Revenues -
(in millions)

As of June 30

Dollar Percent

2017 2016 Change Change
Property taxes and assessments $ 2.7 § 27 5 - 0.00%
Investment income 03 0.2 0.1 50.00%
Power sales 0.8 0.5 0.3 60.00%
Other income 0.2 0.1 0.1 100.00%
Grant revenues 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.00%
Total operating expenses, excluding depreciation _ § 4.1 $ 3.6 $ 0.5 13.89%




Operating Expenses, Excluding Depreciation

Approximately fifty-eight percent (58%) of the District’s operating expenses are salaries and benefits,

followed by utility services and professional services. Other significant operating expenses include
other operating expenses and repairs and maintenance.

Table A-5
Operating Expenses, Excluding Depreciation
(in millions)

As of June 30

Dollar Percent

2017 2016 Change Change
Salaries and benefits $ 8.6 $ 7.8 3 0.8 10.26%
Repairs and maintenance 1.0 0.8 02 25.00%
Materials and supplies 0.8 0.7 0.1 14.29%
Utility services 1.3 1.0 0.3 30.00%
Professional services 1.2 0.9 03 33.33%
Vehicle and equipment 04 03 0.1 33.33%
Other operating expenses 1.1 1.3 0.2) -15.38%
Travel and training 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.00%
Director costs 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.00%
Postemployment benefits 0.1 0.7 (0.6) -85.71%
Total operating expenses, excluding depreciation  § 14.7 $ 13.7 $ 1.0 7.30%

Total FY 2016-17 operating expenses, excluding depreciation, were $14.7 million, $1.0 million greater
than the prior year. Benefit increases are due to higher PERS normal and unfunded liability costs, and
increased retiree health contributions. Overtime costs incurred by the District in response to the severe
winter storms of 2017, and MOU increases, resulted in higher salary costs. The District filed claims
seeking reimbursement for storm related costs under three State and Federal major disaster declarations.

Nonoperating Expenses
Includes gain/(loss) on the sale of capital assets, debt service interest expense and bond issuance costs
associated with the Series 2016 Water Enterprise Revenue Bonds.

Table A-6
Nonoperating Expenses
(in millions)

As of June 30
Dollar Percent
2017 2016 Change Change
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets $ - $ - $ - 0.00%
Interest expense 0.3 03 0.0 0.00%
Bond issuance costs and other 0.0 0.1 (0.1) -100.00%
Total nonoperating expenses $ 0.3 $ 04 $ 0.1) -25.00%

Nonoperating expenses were $0.3 million, relatively unchanged from the prior year.



Net Operating Income (Loss), Excluding Depreciation and Amortization
An important measure of an organization’s performance.

Table A-7
Net Operating Income, Excluding Depreciation
(in millions)

As of June 30
Dollar Percent
2017 2016 Change Change
Operating revenues $ 122 $ 11.8 b 0.4 3.39%
Operating expenditures (14.7) (13.7) (1.0) 7.30%
Net operating income/(loss), excluding depreciation  § 2.5 $ 19 s (0.6) 31.58%

In spite of increased water sales, the FY 2016-17 net operating loss, excluding depreciation, is $0.6
million greater than FY 2015-16. The increase in operating expenditures are a result of increased salary
and benefits expenses, including PERS and retiree health, and higher utility services costs.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CAPITAL ASSETS

Additions and deletions to capital assets encompass a broad range of infrastructure, including water and
sewer plants, recycled water facilities, construction in progress, and other assets such as vehicles,
equipment, office equipment, and furniture. All capital asset increases are consistent with the District’s
implementation of its capital improvement program. Details of the District’s capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, are listed in the following table:

Table A-8
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
(in millions)

As of June 30
Dollar Percent
2017 2016 Change Change
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 13.6 3 13.7 $ 0.1) -0.73%
Construction in progress 6.2 3.0 3.2 106.67%
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 19.8 16.7 3.1 18.56%
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 8.3 8.7 (0.4) -4.60%
Utility system - infrastructure 79.8 812 (1.4) -1.72%
Machinery and equipment 1.7 1.7 0.0 0.00%
Total capital assets, being depreciated 89.8 91.6 (1.8) -1.97%
Total capital assets, net $ 1096 $ 1083 3 1.3 1.20%

Additional information about capital assets is presented in Note C of the Notes fo the Basic Financial
Statements.

10



Net capital assets totaled approximately $109.6 million, $1.3 million higher than the prior year. An
increase of $5.1 million in capital assets was offset by $3.8 million in accumulated depreciation.

The major capital asset additions for fiscal year 2016-17 include:
e  $3.5 million for the Ebbetts Pass Reach 3a Water Transmission Line Replacement Project
e $1.5 million for the Big Trees Redwood Water Storage Tank Replacement Project
e  $0.4 million for vehicle and equipment replacement

LONG-TERM DEBT AND LOANS

As of June 30, 2017, the District had $9.7 million in long-term debt and loans outstanding, and a
compensated absences balance of $0.9 million. Even with the issuance of $2.4 million in 2016 USDA
water revenue bonds, total long-term liabilities decreased $0.1 million, or -1.1% from FY 2015-16 as the
District continued to make scheduled principal payments on its water and sewer revenue loans, the U.S.
Bureau of Reclamation Note, and its PERS Side Fund Pension Loan.

A condensed summary of the District’s long-term liabilities are as follows:

Table A-9
Condensed Long Term Liabilities
(in millions)

As of June 30
Dollar Percent
2017 2016 Change Change
Water Fund:
Water Revenue Loans 3 45 3 6.3 $ (1.8) -28.57%
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Note 0.3 04 (0.1) -25.00%
Pension Loan 0.4 0.5 (0.1) -20.00%
Total Water Fund loans and notes 52 72 2.0) -27.78%
Compensated absences 0.6 0.5 0.1 20.00%
Total Water Fund liabilities 5.8 7.7 (19) -24.68%
Sewer Fund:
Sewer Revenue Loans 1.6 2.1 0.5) -23.81%
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Note 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.00%
Pension Loan 0.2 0.3 (0.1) -33.33%
Total Sewer Fund loans and notes 1.9 2.5 0.6) -24.00%
Compensated absences 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.00%
Total Sewer Fund liabilities 2.2 2.8 (0.6) -21.43%
Public Financing Authority
Water Revenue Bonds 2.6 0.2 2.4 1200.00%
Total long-term Labilities $ 10.6 $ 10.7 $ 0.0 -0.93%

Additional information on the District’s debt and loans can be found in Note D of the Notes fo the Basic
Financial Statements.

11



ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Calaveras County’s employment picture continued to improve as the unemployment rate dropped from
5.6 percent (5.6%) in June 2016 to five percent (5.0%) in June 2017. The largest job gains were
recorded in the wholesale and retail trades, followed by professional and business services. However,
future job growth is not expected to exceed one percent (1.0%) as the county’s population is projected to
decline annually 0.3 percent (0.3%) from 2017 to 2022. As a result wage growth is expected to slow to
1.5 percent (1.5%) in 2017, followed by an average annual increase of 0.5 percent (0.5%) until 2022.

While the public sector remains the County’s largest employer, accounting for approximately twenty-
eight percent (28%) of all jobs, future job gains are expected to occur in the wholesale and retail trades,
leisure and hospitality, and professional and business services. It is likely that a portion of these new
jobs will be filled by non-county residents due to the aging of the county’s current workforce and
projected county population declines. With fewer people moving into the county, demand for
construction of new housing units will likely remain low. Thus the number of new water and sewer
service connections will also remain low, as will capacity fee revenues. On the other hand, slower
growth does delay the need to expand the water and sewer systems to accommodate new connections.

The District, through its Capital Renovation and Replacement (“Capital R&R”) water and sewer rates,
continues its commitment to fund the renovation and replacement of its capital infrastructure — pipeline,
lift stations, storage tanks, etc. Although the District eliminated the third and final scheduled rate
increase in the 2013 Five-Year Rate Plan, the Capital R&R rate revenues, in conjunction with the water
and sewer loans and grants, has provided the much needed funding for capital projects. The District’s
Board of Directors annually reviews and adopts the District’s Five-Year Capital Improvement Program
(CIP), which is the basis for the subsequent year’s CIP budget.

Even though the declared drought recently came to an end, the state’s mandated water conservation
program initiated by Governor Brown continues to affect the District’s water operations and sales.
Consumptive water sales and revenues have been slow to rebound. And although the District has ample
water supplies to meet customer demands, the District’s customers have yet to return to pre-drought
consumptive levels.

The ongoing reduction in water revenues has stretched the District resources. Operating and
maintaining water and sewer systems on a 24/7 basis is costly, as much of the treatment and regulatory
costs are fixed. Although the District remains vigilant in implementing cost-cutting and efficiency
measures to reduce expenses, these measures cannot be allowed to compromise the District’s ability to
meet public health and safety requirements. As always, the District is committed to monitoring its fiscal
condition as well as the state of the local economy. HDR Engineering, Inc. was hired in FY 2016-17 to
perform a Financial Analysis and Cost of Service Study to review the adequacy of the District’s water
and wastewater rates. The study will be completed in FY 2017-18.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, customers, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need any additional information,
contact the District at (209) 754-3543 or via our website at www.ccwd.org.



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30,2017
(With Prior Year Data for Comparative Purposes Only)

Totals for
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Comparative Purposes Only
Public
Financing
Water Sewer Authority 2017 2016
ASSETS AND DEFERRED
QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,519,203 $ 7,519,203 $ 7,909,500
Investments 1,180,468 §$ 11,446 1,191,914 1,084,683
Accounts receivable 1,859,260 820,289 2,679,549 2,712,093
Taxes receivable 173,298 60,889 234,187 142,972
Grants receivable 462,835 45218 § 748,205 1,256,258 541,580
Bond proceeds receivable 162,215
Interest receivable 28,177 4,140 32,317 35,317
Prepaid expenses and other assets 74,625 26,220 100,845 149,029
Due from other funds 346,633 346,633 257,798
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 11,644,499 968,202 748,205 13,360,906 12,995,187
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 13,501,408 4,390,120 2,692 17,894,220 17,340,248
Investments 2,119,638 1,146,797 3,266,435 1,987,552
Interest receivable 19,870 7,070 26,940 30,997
Due from other funds 716,110 716,110 192,014
Interfund loans 2,362,011 2,362,011 2,339,106
Total Restricted Assets 16,357,026 7,905,998 2,692 24,265,716 21,889,917
Other noncurrent assets 26,465 9,299 35,764 37,229
Notes receivable 7,949 2,793 10,742 10,741
Other postemployment benefits asset 821,665 288,693 1,110,358 701,604
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable 6,664,351 9,803,018 3,337,419 19,804,788 16,741,272
Depreciable, net 58,046,546 31,743,944 89,790,490 91,512,720
Total Capital Assets, Net 64,710,897 41,546,962 3,337419 109,595,278 108,253,992
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 81,924,002 49,753,745 3,340,111 135,017,858 130,893,483
TOTAL ASSETS 93,568,501 50,721,947 4,088,316 148,378,764 143,888,670

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension plan 2,249,369 790,318 3,039,687 1,259,574

TOTAIL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES _§ 95,817,870 § 51,512,265 $ 4088316 § 151418451 § 145,148244




CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET - PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deposits payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to other funds
Current portion of long-term liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to other funds
Interfund loans
Noncurrent portion of long-term liabilities
Retention payable
Net pension liability
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension plan

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for expansion and construction
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

‘OTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

June 30, 2017
(With Prior Year Data for Comparative Purposes Only)

Totals for
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Comparative Purposes Only
Public
Financing
Water Sewer Authority 2017 2016
3 366,387 % 247814 § 216752 % 830,953 § 946,538
63,878 21,076 84,954 76,561
36,071 12,811 19,097 67,979 66,386
346,633 346,633 257,798
1,802,583 853,780 42,700 2,699,063 3,239,881
2,268,919 1,135,481 625,182 4,029,582 4,587,164
716,110 716,110 192,014
2,362,011 2,362,011 2,339,106
3,939,431 1,392,059 2,579,300 7,910,790 7,486,847
182,034 182,034

6,510,030 2,287,308 8,797,338 6,909,619
12,811,472 4,395,477 2,761,334 19,968,283 16,927,586
15,080,391 5,530,958 3,386,516 23,997,865 21,514,750
284,962 100,123 385,085 691,145
59,883,947 40,031,200 745,419 100,660,566 99,239,365
12,537,374 7,016,658 19,554,032 15,702,252
527,593 185,371 712,964 712,964
7,503,603 (1,352,045) (43,619) 6,107,939 7,287,768
80,452,517 45,881,184 - 701,800 127,035,501 122,942,349
$ 95817870 § 51,512,265 § 4088316 § 151418451 § 145,148,244

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

14



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

(With Prior Year Data for Comparative Purposes Only)

OPERATING REVENUE
Water sales and sewer charges
Water and sewer fees
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Repairs and maintenance
Materials and supplies
Utility services
Professional services
Vehicle and equipment
Other operating expenses
Travel and training
Director costs
Postemployment benefits
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

NET LOSS FROM OPERATIONS

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Property taxes and assessments

Investment income

Power sales

Other income

Grant revenues

Gain/(loss) on sale of capital assets

Interest expense

Bond issuance costs
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES)

NET (LOSS) INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

Expansion fees
Capital renovation and replacement (R & R) fees
Other capital contributions
Ebbetts Pass Reach 3A Pipeline (USDA) grant
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
TOTAL CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net position at beginning of year

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR

Totals for
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Comparative Purposes Only
Public
Financing
Water Sewer Authority 2017 2016
$ 7476634 $ 4222476 3 11,699,110 § 11,348,473
356,495 101,887 458,382 472,594
7,833,129 4,324,363 12,157,492 11,821,067
5,587,968 2,970,471 8,558,439 7,763,727
635,047 335,902 970,949 796,706
454,379 338,713 793,094 730,046
771,628 536,115 1,307,743 1,036,153
798,794 448,020 1,246,814 863,088
190,553 161,994 352,547 341,923
707,960 413,861 1,121,821 1,237,969
46,701 25,718 72,419 55,168
76,917 27,025 103,942 110,604
103,217 36,265 139,482 720,211
2,606,062 1,220,860 3,826,922 3,839,711
11,979,226 6,514,946 18,494,172 17,495,306
(4,146,097) (2,190,583) (6,336,680} (5,674,239)
2,028,441 712,695 2,741,136 2,687,879
173,643 107,864 281,507 222289
569,956 199,532 769,488 572,563
146,804 56,170 202,974 65,797
81,672 28,696 110,368 82,505
(23,202) (8,152) (31,354) (22,996)
(184,503) (70,933) $§ (35285) (290,721) (309,177)
(27,295)
2,792,811 1,025,872 (35,285) 3,783,398 3,271,563
(1,353,286) (1,164,711) (35,285) (2,553,282) (2,402,674)
541,297 161,572 702,869 1,420,903
3,216,530 1,172,164 4,388,694 4,284,144
790,546 16,120 806,666 583,223
748,205 748,203

2,718 16,188 18,906 211,624
(16,188) (2,718) (18.,906) (211,624)
4,534,903 1,349,856 761,673 6,646,434 6,288,270
3,181,617 185,145 726,390 4,093,152 3,885,596
77,270,900 45,696,039 (24,590) 122,942,349 119,056,753
$ 80452517 § 45,881,184 § 701,800 $ 127,035,501 $ 122,942,349

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

15



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(With Prior Year Data for Comparative Purposes Only)

Totals for
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Comparative Purposes Only
Public
Financing
‘Water Sewer Authority 2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers $ 7,811,539 3 4,388,355 $ 12,199,894 § 11,850,354
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (3,803,215) (2,128,677) (5,931,892) (4,862,818)
Cash paid to employees for services (6,401,604) (3,180,868) {9,582,472) (9,078,666)
NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,393,280) (921,190) (3,314,470) (2,091,130)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Property taxes and assessments 1,960,942 688,979 2,649,921 2,709,158
Power sales 569,956 199,532 769,488 572,563
Other income 146,803 56,170 202,973 107,706
Operating grants from outside agencies 53,347 (16,120) 37,227 82,103
Interfund transfers (435,407) 435,407
NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,295,641 1,363,968 3,659,609 3,471,530
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions received 4,655,041 1,349,856 6,004,897 5,771,627
Acquisition of capital assets (1,810,703) (307,110)  $(2,743,914) (4,861,727) (3,642,281)
Proceeds from disposals of capital assets 45,104 15,847 60,951
Interfund capital transfers (168,089) 168,089
Long-term liability issuance costs (27,295)
Proceeds from long-term liabilities 2,592,000 2,592,000 30,000
Principal paid on long-term liabilities (2,015,059) (575,848) (2,590,907) (2,460,428)
Interest payments on long-term liabilities (197,549) (75,391) (16,188) (289,128) (322,492)
NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 508,745 407,354 (13) 916,086 (650,869)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Maturities of investments 1,524,975 463,998 1,988,973 11,223,423
Purchases of investments (2,317,770) (814,352) (3,132,122) -
Interest received 260 45339 45,599 214,845
NET CASH PROVIDED BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (792,535) (305,015) (1,097,550) 11,438,268
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (381,429) 545,117 (13) 163,675 12,167,799
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 21,402,040 3,845,003 2,705 25,249,748 13,081,949
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ATEND OF YEAR _§ 21,020,611 $ 4390120 % 2,692 § 25413423 § 25,249,748
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
TO THE COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,519,203 $  7,519203 § 7,909,500
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 13,501,408 $ 4,390,120 $ 2,692 17,894,220 17,340,248
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
ATENDOF YEAR 3 21020611 $ 4390,120 $ 2,692 § 25413423 § 25249748

16



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS PROPRIETARY FUNDS (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(With Prior Year Data for Comparative Purposes Only)

Totals for
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Comparative Purposes Only
Public
Financing
Water Sewer Authority 2017 2016
RECONCILIATION OF NET L.OSS FROM OPERATIONS
TO NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss from operations 3 (4,146,097y % (2,190,583) $ (6,336,680) $ (5,674,239)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss from operations
to net cash used for operating activities:
Depreciation 2,606,062 1,220,860 3,826,922 3,839,711
Changes in operating assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources:
Accounts receivable (28,834) 61,378 32,544 34,791
Prepaid expenses and other assets 35,657 12,527 48,184 3,068
Deferred charges 1,085 380 1,465 (18,216)
Other postemployment benefits asset (302,478) (106,276) (408,754) (400,355)
Net pension liability and related deferred inflows
and outflows of resources (146,857) (51,597) (198,454) (112,832)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (444,817) 112,480 (332,337) 175,097
Deposits payable 6,159 2,234 8,393 12,712
Compensated absences 26,840 17,407 44,247 49,133
NET CASH USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES § (2,393,280 $  (921,190) § - § (3,314470) § (2,091,130)
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH
ACTIVITIES: :
Change in unrealized gain/loss on investments $ (179,794 $ (63,171) (242,965) §  (155,065)
Change in bond proceeds receivable $ 162,215 162,215 §  (162,215)

Capital asset purchases payable
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

17

$  (398,786)



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT AGENCY FUND

June 30, 2017

(With Prior Year Data for Comparative Purposes Only)

Agency Funds
2017 2016
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,093,452 1,093,033
Interest receivable 1,419 781
Tax proceeds receivable 12,938
Due from County of Calaveras 15,357 21,262
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agents 521,862 519,719
TOTAL ASSETS § 1,645,028 1,634,795
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 4,966 1,141
Notes payable 10,742 10,741
Due to other governments 198,419 247,794
Due to bond holders 1,430,901 1,375,119
TOTAL LIABILITIES § 1,645,028 1,634,795

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

18



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2017

NOTE A —~ REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity: The Calaveras County Water District (the District) was formed on September 6, 1946 under the
County Water District Law (California Water Code Sections 30000-33901) for the purpose of assisting residents of
Calaveras County in establishing and protecting their water resources. The District's boundaries are the same as the
boundary lines of the County of Calaveras, which encompasses approximately 640,000 acres. The District provides
retail water services to approximately 13,000 municipal, residential and commercial customers; retail sewer services
to approximately 4,800 customers; and provides wholesale treated water to two independent retail water service
providers. Water and sewer services are provided to eight operational areas within the boundaries of the District.
The District is also engaged in the development of hydroelectric power for financial support and for the
development of water supply. The District has 76,300 acre-feet of post-1914 water rights on the North Fork of the
Stanislaus River, 1,830 acre feet of water rights on the Bear Creek tributary to the Middle Fork of the Mokelumne
River, a contractual allocation of 31,278 acre feet of the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation's water rights in New Hogan
Reservoir on the Calaveras River and water rights from various other sources. The District's facilities consist of five
water treatment plants, twenty-eight treated water storage facilities and thirteen sewer treatment facilities.

The District has two power generating facilities operated by other governmental agencies under contracts where the
District receives a contractual monthly payment and the other agencies receive the rights to power generated and are
responsible for the operating costs of the hydroelectric power generating facilities. The Northern California Power
Agency is responsible for the power generating facility on the North Fork of the Stanislaus River. The other power
generating facility is at the New Hogan Reservoir, which is operated by the Modesto Irrigation District. However,
in the case of the New Hogan Reservoir, the District and the Stockton East Water District reimburse the Army Corps
of Engineers proportional shares of the operating and maintenance costs of the reservoir’s dam, water storage and
recreational facilities.

The District's Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) license for both of these facilities expires in 2032
and the District has begun the relicensing process. The FERC relicensing costs will be reported as part of
construction in progress and will result in an intangible asset being reported when the license is issued that will be
amortized over the license period.

The financial statements include the financial activities of the Calaveras County Water District Public Financing
Authority (the Authority), which was formed under a joint exercise of power agreement between the District and the
Independent Cities Finance Authority (ICFA). The Authority was established on April 4, 2016 to provide assistance
to the District in the issuance of debt (see Note D). The Authority is a component unit of the District because the
District’s Board of Directors serves as the Board of Directors of the Authority and the District is financially
accountable for the Authority. The JPA agreement provides that the liabilities of the Authority do not constitute
liabilities of the District or ICFA, but requires the District and Authority to indemnify the ICFA for any and all costs
and liabilities arising directly or indirectly from the Authority’s activities. The District has a residual interest in any
property held by the Authority upon its dissolution. The activity of the Authority is reported as the Public Financing
Authority Enterprise Fund due to the separate reporting requirements under the joint exercise of powers agreement.
The Authority does not issue separate financial statements.

The District is also a member of the following joint power authorities/agencies (JPAs) where the District is not
responsible for the liabilities of the JPAs under the JPA agreements and only has a residual interest in any assets
held by the JPAs upon termination of the agreements: Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) and
ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority, Calaveras~Amador Mokelumne River Authority, Calaveras Public Power
Agency, Tuolumne-Stanislaus Integrated Regional Water Management Joint Powers Authority, Upper Mokelumne
River Watershed Authority, and Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority.

Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting: The District’s resources are allocated to and accounted for in these basic
financial statements using the enterprise fund type of the proprietary fund group. A fund is a self-balancing set of
accounts. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises, where the intent of the govemning body is that the costs (expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered

19



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE A ~REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continned)

primarily through user charges. Net position for the enterprise fund represents the amount available for future
operations.

The District reports the following major proprietary funds:
Water Fund — This fund accounts for the activities of providing water to residents of the District.
Sewer Fund — This fund accounts for the activities of providing sewer management to rate payers of the District.

Public Financing Authority Fund— This fund accounts for the activities of the Calaveras County Water District
Public Financing Authority. The Authority was established to assist the District in the issuance of certain debt used
for a water pipeline project, as discussed in Note D.

The District also reports the following fiduciary fund:

Agency Fund — This fund is used to account for assets held by the District as an agent for nine special assessment
districts within its boundaries used to finance improvements within the special assessment districts, including
improvements financed with special assessment bonds.

Basis of Accounting: The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its
measurement focus. Enterprise funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and
agency funds have no measurement focus. Under the flow of economic resources measurement focus, all assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources associated with the operation of the fund
are included on the balance sheet. Net position is segregated into the net investment in capital assets, amounts
restricted and amounts unrestricted. Enterprise fund type operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and
decreases (i.e., expenses) in net position. Enterprise funds and agency funds use the accrual basis of accounting.
Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

Operating revenues and expenses consists of those revenues and expenses that result from the ongoing principal
operations of the District, including providing water service, water supply development and planning, wastewater
treatment and disposal and recycling. Operating revenues consist primarily of water sales, sewer charges and related
fees. Operating expenses consist of the cost of sales and services, administration and depreciation on capital assets.
Nonoperating revenues and expenses consist of those revenues and expenses that are related to financing and
investing types of activities and result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. Cost reimbursement
grant revenues are recognized as revenue when the reimbursable costs are incurred under the accrual basis of
accounting.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the District considers all highly liquid
investments with original maturity of three months or less, including restricted assets, to be cash equivalents, which
includes investments in the California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), money market mutual funds and
certificates of deposit.

Accounts Receivable: Billed, but unpaid, services provided to individuals or non-governmental entities are recorded
as accounts receivable. Receivables include a year-end accrual for water and sewer utility services provided through
the end of the fiscal year that were not billed at year-end. Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for
uncollectible accounts of $33,975 and $16,765 for the Water and Sewer Funds, respectively.

Restricted Assets: Restricted assets consist of unspent expansion and capital renovation and replacement (R & R)

fees that are restricted to certain expansion and construction projects. Restricted Sewer Fund assets also include the
interfund loan made to the Water Fund described below. Restricted Public Financing Authority Fund assets include

20



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE A ~ REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

unspent U.S. Department of Agriculture bond proceeds that are restricted to future bond payments. Fiscal agent
cash and cash equivalents in the Agency Funds represents amounts required to be held for future debt payments by
the related bond indenture. Amounts payable from restricted assets in the Water and Sewer Funds at June 30, 2017
totaled $4,121,352 and $1,548,417, respectively, including accounts payable and principal and accrued interest
payable on the Umpqua Bank 2014 Water and Sewer Revenue Loans as described in Note D.

Interfund Transactions: During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual enterprise
funds that may result in an amount owed between funds. “Due to and from other funds” represents short-term
interfund receivables and payables. Interfund loans represent the noncurrent portion of interfund borrowings, The
interfund loan outstanding at year-end represents Sewer Fund expansion fees authorized by the Board of Directors to
be used on the District’s headquarters project, which is reported in the Water Fund. Repayment terms are discussed
in Note E.

Capital Assets: Capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at the acquisition
value, which is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly market
transaction at the acquisition date. The costs of normal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives.

Years
Buildings 50
Improvements other than buildings 15-50
Machinery and equipment 4-10
Vehicles §-10
Computer equipment and software 3-4

It is the District’s policy to capitalize assets with a cost of $5,000 or more with useful lives in excess of one year.
The cost of assets sold or retired (and the related amounts of accumulated depreciation) is eliminated from the
balance sheet in the year of sale or retirement, and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in operations.

Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources: In addition to assets and liabilities, the balance sheet will sometimes
report separate sections for deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources
represent a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred
inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period. These
amounts will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) or an inflow of resources (revenue) until the
earnings process is complete. Deferred outflows and inflows of resources include amounts deferred related to the
District’s pension plans under GASB Statement No. 68 as described in Note 1.

Compensated Absences: A total of 22 to 32 days of Personal Time Off (PTO) leave per year may be accumulated
by each employee. Compensation time and holiday hours are also accrued as compensated absences. Employees are
paid 100% of their PTO leave hours upon death, termination or retirement. The liability for compensated absences
is recorded as a liability in the statement of net position. The current portion of this liability is estimated based on
historical trends. The cost of compensated absences is recorded in the period it is incurred and is liquidated in the
Water and Sewer Funds.

Pensions: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to
pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s CalPERS plan (Plan)
and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Plan investments are reported at fair value.

21



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE A ~REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Budgetary Principles: The Board of Directors does not operate under any legal budgeting constraints. Budget
integration is employed as a management control device. Budgets are formally adopted by the Board and take effect
on each July 1.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. The
District allocates general and administrative expenses 74% to the Water Fund and 26% to the Sewer Fund according
to the relative number of water and sewer accounts.

Property Taxes: Secured and unsecured property taxes are levied on July 1 by the County of Calaveras. Secured
property taxes are due in two installments, the first installment is due on November 1 and delinquent with penalties
after December 10; the second installment is due February 1 and delinquent with penalties after April 10th, on
property taxes assessed on July 1. Unsecured property taxes are payable in one installment on or before August 31.
Property tax revenues are recognized in the fiscal year in which they are levied.

Comparative Totals: The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total but not by fund. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the District’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016 from which
the summarized information was derived.

Reclassifications: Certain 2016 expense balances have been reclassified to conform to the 2017 financial statement
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on total assets, liabilities, net position or change in net position.

New Pronouncements: In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB). This Statement replaces the requirements of GASB
Statement No. 45 and requires governments responsible for OPEB liabilities related to their own employees to report
a net OPEB liability on the face of the financial statements. Governments that participate in a cost-sharing OPEB
plan that is administered through a trust that meets the specified criteria will report a liability equal to their
proportionate share of the collective OPEB liability for all entities participating in the cost-sharing plan.
Governments that do not provide OPEB through a trust that meets specified criteria will report the total OPEB
liability related to their employees. This Statement also requires governments to present more extensive note
disclosures and required supplementary information about their OPEB liabilities. This Statement is effective for
periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

In January 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units — an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. This Statement amends the blending requirements for component units to
add an additional criterion that requires blending of a component unit incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in
which the primary government is the sole corporate member per the articles of incorporation or by-laws and the
component unit is included in the financial reporting entity pursuant to provisions in paragraphs 21-37 of Statement
14, as amended. The requirements of this Statement are effective for the years beginning after June 15, 2016.

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. This Statement establishes criteria for
identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of the criteria generally is on (1)
whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a
fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and
postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. This Statement describes four fiduciary funds
that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust
funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds. Custodial funds generally should report fiduciary
activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria. This Statement also
provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has occurred that

22



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30,2017

NOTE A - REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. Events that compel a government to disburse fiduciary
resources occur when a demand for the resources has been made or when no further action, approval, or condition is
required to be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the assets. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The primary objective of
this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by
providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources——
resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt—are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of
extinguishing debt. This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt
that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is defeased in substance. For governments that
extinguish debt, whether through a legal extinguishment or through an in-substance defeasance, this Statement
requires that any remaining prepaid insurance related to the extinguished debt be included in the net carrying amount
of that debt for the purpose of calculating the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount
of the debt. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2017.

The District will fully analyze the impact of these new Statements prior to the effective dates listed above.

NOTE B — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments were reported in the financial statements as follows at June 30, 2017:

Proprietary Fiduciary
Funds Funds Total
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,519203 $ 1,093,452 § 8,612,655
Investments 1,191,914 1,191,914
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 17,894,220 17,894,220
Restricted cash and cash equivalents with fiscal agents 521,862 521,862
Restricted investments 3,266,435 3,266,435
Total cash and investments $ 29,871,772 $ 1,615314 § 31,487,086

Cash and investments were classified according to GASB Statement No. 40 as follows at June 30, 2017:

Proprietary Fiduciary
Funds Funds Total

Cash on hand $ 600 $ 600

Bank deposits 4,844340 §$ 658,843 5,503,183

Total cash and deposits 4,844,940 658,843 5,503,783

Medium term corporate notes 93,338 93,338

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 20,568,483 434,609 21,003,092

Non-negotiable certificates of deposit 4,365,011 4,365,011
Investments with fiscal agents:

Money market mutual funds 205,624 205,624

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 316,238 316,238

Total investments 25,026,832 956,471 25,983,303

Total cash and investments $ 29,871,772 $ 1,615314 $§ 31,487,086

23



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE B - CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investment policy: California statutes authorize governments to invest idle or surplus funds in a variety of credit
instruments as provided for in the California Government Code, Section 53600, Chapter 4 - Financial Affairs. The
table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the California Government Code (or the District’s
investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.
The District’s permissible investments included the following instruments:

Maximum Minimum
Maximum Percentage Credit
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio Quality
Local district bonds 5 years 50% AA
U.8. Treasury obligations 5 years 100% N/A
State of California obligations 5 years 100% A
Other state obligations 5 years 20% AA
California local district obligations 5 years 50% AA
U.8. agency securities 5 years 100% AAA
Bankers acceptances 180 days 40% A
Commercial paper 270 days 25% AA
Negotiable certificates of deposit 5 years 30% N/A
Repurchase agreements 1 year 20% None
Reverse repurchase agreements 92 days 20% of base A
Medium term corporate notes 5 years 30% A
Money market mutual funds N/A 20% e}
Joint Powers Authority N/A 20% None
Collateralized bank deposits 5 years 20% AA
Time deposits 2 years 20% N/A
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A No limit N/A
County pooled investment funds N/A 30% None
Non-negotiable certificates of deposit 2 years 40% None

(1) Must be the highest rating by 2 of the 3 nationally recognized rating agencies.

The District complied with the provisions of the California Government Code pertaining to the types of investments
held, the institutions in which deposits were made and the security requirements.

24



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30,2017

NOTE B — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements: The District must maintain required amounts of cash and investments
with trustees or fiscal agents under the terms of certain debt agreements. These funds are unexpended bond proceeds

or are pledged reserves to be used if the District fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The California
Government Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with District resolutions, bond indentures or

State statutes. The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal

agents. The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Maximum Minimum
Maximum Percentage Credit
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio Quality
Local district bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury obligations 5 years None None
State of California obligations 5 years 100% None
Other state obligations 5 years None None
California local district obligations 5 years None None
U.S. agency securities 5 years None None
Bankers acceptances 180 days 40%/30% None
Commercial paper 270 days 25% or 10% Al/P1/F1
Negotiable certificates of deposit 5 years 30% None
Repurchase agreements 1 year None Various
Reverse repurchase agreements 92 days 20% of base A
Medium term corporate notes 5 years 30% Aor>
Money market mutual funds N/A 20% )
Joint Powers Authority N/A None None
Collateralized bank deposits 5 years None AA
Time deposits 5 years None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
County pooled investment funds N/A None None
Non-negotiable certificates of deposit 5 years 100% None

(1) Must be highest rating by 2 of 3 of the nationally recognized rating agencies.

Interest rate risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to

changes in market interest rates.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is
provided in the following table that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity at June 30, 2017:

12 Months 13to 24 25 to 60
Investment Type Total or Less Months Months
Medium term corporate notes $ 93,338 § 93,338
LATF 21,003,092 21,003,092
Non-negotiable certificates of deposit 4,365,011 2,069,761 § 322,270 $§ 1,972,980
Investments with fiscal agent:
Money market mutual funds 205,624 205,624
LAIF 316,238 316,238
Total Investments $ 25983303 § 23,688,053 $ 322270 $ 1,972,980

25



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE B — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

California Local Agency Investment Fund: The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment
Fund (LAIF), which is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer
of the State of California. The District reports its investment in LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LATF,
which is the same as the value of the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on demand, and is based on
the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. Included in LAIF's
investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed
securities, loans to certain state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-sponsored
enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills and corporate securities. The carrying value of LAIF
approximates fair value.

Credit Risk: Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.
Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the
District’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment type at
June 30, 2017.

Minimum  Ratings as of Year End

Investment Type Total Rating Not Rated

Medium term corporate notes™” $ 93,338 A $ 93,338

LAIF 21,003,092 N/A 21,003,092

Non-negotiable certificates of deposit 4,365,011 None 4,365,011
Investments with fiscal agent:

Money market mutual funds 205,624 N/A 205,624

LAIF 316,238 N/A 316,238

Total Investments $ 25,983,303 3 25,983,303

(1) Investment in Lehman Brothers note. Corporation filed for bankruptcy in 2008 and rating was withdrawn.

Concentration of Credit Risk: The investment policy of the District limits the amount that can be invested in any
one issuer by the California Government Code. The California Government Code limits the amount that may be
invested in any one issuer, as disclosed in the preceding table. GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure of
investments with one issuer exceeding 5% of total investments, with the exception of U.S. Treasury obligations,
mutual funds and external investment pools.

Custodial credit risk: Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in
the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. The California
Government Code and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit
the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than the following provision for deposits: The California
Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by
pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived
by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least
110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to
secure public agency deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured
public deposits.

26



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE B — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

At June 30, 2017, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits, including Agency Fund deposits and certificates of
deposit, was $9,868,194 and the balance in financial institutions was $10,043,145. Of the balance in financial
institutions, $2,256,500 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining amount of $7,786,645 was
secured by a pledge of securities by the financial institution, but not in the name of the District. The California local
district obligations, medium term corporate notes and money market mutual funds are held by the same broker-
dealers (counterparty) used by the District to buy the securities.

On September 15, 2008, Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. declared bankruptcy, which has had a direct and negative
impact on the District’s investment holdings. After consultation with the District’s investment broker, the District
decided to permanently write-down the carrying amount of the securities to the estimated recoverable market value
and hold the securities through the bankruptcy proceedings. There is a market for selling the security and the
District is able to determine a fair value. As of June 30, 2017, the District carried the Lehman securities at the
estimated recoverable fair value provided by the investment broker of $93,338. The amount ultimately recovered
may differ from this estimate. The District recovered $43,242 on the securities during the year-ended June 30, 2017.

Investment in LAIF: LAIF is stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The LAIF is a special fund of
the California State Treasury through which local governments may pool investments. The total fair value of
amounts invested on June 30, 2017 by all public agencies in LAIF was $77,539,216,146 which is managed by the
State Treasurer. Of that amount, .64% is invested in non-derivative financial products and 2.25% in structured notes
and asset-backed financial instruments. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight responsibility
for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by State Statute. The fair value of the District’s
investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s
pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of
that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which
are recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Fair Value Measurements: The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to

measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; level 2
" inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The District has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017:

e Medium term corporate notes of $93,338 are valued based on the estimated recoverable value based on
information learned during the Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. bankruptcy, which includes unobservable
inputs (Level 3 inputs).

The District’s investment in LAIF, non-negotiable certificates of deposit and money market mutual funds are not
subject to fair value measurements or are measured at the net asset value of the underlying investments.

27



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE C—- CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Utility system - infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumnlated depreciation for:
Buildings
Utility system - infrastructure
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Total capital assets, net

Balance at Transfers and Balance at

July 1, 2016 Additions  Retirements  Adjustments June 30,2017
$ 13,702,378 $ (92,305) $ 13,610,073
3,038,894 § 4,818,692 $ (1,662,871 6,194,715
16,741,272 4,818,692 (92,305) (1,662,871) 19,804,788
18,603,518 18,603,518
153,152,237 43,500 1,662,871 154,858,608
17,530,666 398,321 17,928,987
189,286,421 441,821 1,662,871 191,391,113
(9,915,816) (357,141) (10,272,957)
(72,042,099) (3,086,945) (75,129,044)
(15,815,786) (382,836) (16,198.622)
(97,773,701) (3,826,922) (101,600,623)
91,512,720 (3,385,101) 1,662,871 89,790,490

$ 108,253,992 § 1,433,591 § (92,305) § - $ 109,595,278

28



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE D - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The activity of the District’s long-term liabilities during the year ended June 30, 2017 was as follows:

Balance at Balance at
July 1, June 30, Current
2016 Additions Retirements 2017 Portion
Water Fund:
Series 2013 Refunding Water Revenue Loan $ 2,165,370 $ (1,722,644) § 442726 $ 442,726
Umpqua Bank 2014 Water Revenue Loan 4,061,933 4,061,933 650,340
Wallace WestAmerica Loan 70,049 (70,049)
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Note - Hogan 363,169 (40,878) 322,291 40,464
Umpqua Bank Pension Loan 538,064 (181,488) 356,576 192,153
Total Water Fund loans and notes 7,198,585 (2,015,059) 5,183,526 1,325,683
Compensated absences 531,648 $ 478,741 (451,901) 558,488 476,900
Total Water Fund liabilities . 7,730,233 478,741 (2,466,960) 5,742 014 1,802,583
Sewer Fund:
Series 2013 Refunding Sewer Revenue Loan 93,518 (74,398) 19,120 19,120
Umpqua Bank 2014 Sewer Revenue Loan 1,779,728 (284,936) 1,494,792 347,418
Vac-Con Truck Loan 136,433 (67,494) 68,939 68,939
Wallace WestAmerica Loan 24,612 (24,612)
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Note - Hogan 127,600 (14,363) 113,237 14,217
Umpqua Bank Pension Loan 310,618 (110,045) 200,573 108,086
Total Sewer Fund loans and notes 2,472,509 (575,848) 1,896,661 557,780
Compensated absences 331,771 299,412 (282,005) 349,178 296,000
Total Sewer Fund liabilities 2.804,280 299412 (857.853) 2,245,839 853,780
Public Financing Authority Fund:
Series 2016 Water Enterprise Revenue Bonds 192,215 2,429,785 2.622.000 42,700

Total long-term liabilities _$§ 10726728 $§ 3207938 $§ (3,324.813) $ 10.609.853 § 2699.063

Description of Water Fund Loans and Notes:

Series 2013 Refunding Water Revenue Loan: On February 1, 2013, the District obtained a loan from Compass
Mortgage Corporation in the amount of $7,188,541 to refund the 2004 Revenue Bonds. The loan is payable from
a pledge on the District’s net water revenues as defined in the agreement and the District must collect rates, fees
and charges during the term of the loan that are at least equal to 125% of the debt service payments on this loan
and all other parity debt. Annual principal payments are due each September 1 with one remaining principal
payment of $442,726 and one remaining semi-annual interest payment of $3,498, at 1.58% through September 1,
2017.

Umpqua Bank 2014 Water Revenue Loan: In April 2014, the District obtained a loan from Umpqua Bank for
$4,061,933 to fund various water improvement projects. The loan is payable from a pledge on the District’s net
water revenue as defined in the agreement and the District must collect rates, fees and charges during the term of
the loan that are at least equal to 125% of the debt service payments on this loan and all other parity debt. Semi-
annual principal and interest payments ranging from $365,000 to $593,471 are due beginning in September 1,
2017 through March 1, 2021. The interest rate on the loan is 2.12%.

29



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE D — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)
Description of Sewer Fund Loans and Notes:

Series 2013 Refunding Sewer Revenue Loan: On February 1, 2013, the District obtained a loan from Compass
Mortgage Corporation in the amount of $310,459 to refund the 2004 Revenue Bonds. The loan is payable from a
pledge on the District’s net wastewater revenue as defined in the agreement and the District must collect rates,
fees and charges that are at least equal to 125% of the debt service payments on this loan and all other parity debt.
Annual principal payments are due each September 1 with one remaining principal payment of $19,120 and one
remaining semi-annual interest payment of $151 at 1.58% through September 1, 2017,

Umpqua Bank 2014 Sewer Revenue Loan: In April 2014, the District obtained a loan from Umpqua Bank for
$2,337,528 to fund various wastewater improvement projects. The loan is payable from a pledge on the District’s
net wastewater revenue as defined in the agreement and the District must collect rates, fees and charges during the
term of the loan that are at least equal to 125% of the debt service payments on this loan and all other parity debt.
Semi-annual principal and interest payments ranging from $189,928 to $199,605 are due each September 1 and
March 1 at 2.12% through September 1, 2021.

Vac-Con Truck Loan: On April 25, 2013, the District obtained a loan from Umpqua Bank in the amount of
$328,623 for the purchase of a Vac-Con truck. The loan is payable from a pledge on the District’s net wastewater
revenue as defined in the agreement and the District must collect rates, fees and charges that are at least equal to
140% of the debt service payments on the loan. The loan is paid quarterly in installments of $17,628 which
includes interest at 2.675%. The loan matures April 2018.

Description of Shared Water Fund and Sewer Fund Loans and Notes:

Wallace WestAmerica Loan: The District assumed a loan from Wallace Community Services District to
WestAmerica Bank in the amount of $120,934 to take ownership of a wastewater treatment plant equalization
tank owned by the Wallace Community Services District. The loan is payable from a pledge on the District’s net
water and wastewater revenue as defined in the agreement and the District must collect rates, fees and charges that
are at least equal to 115% of the debt service payments on the loan and all other parity debt. The loan is paid
annually in installments of $14,944 due each August 29. The loan includes interest at 5.5% and was paid off as of
June 30, 2017.

U.S. Bureau of Reclamation Note: Under the terms of a contract dated August 25, 1970, between the United
States of America, the Stockton-East Water District and Calaveras County Water District, the two districts agreed
to repay the United States of America 36.2% of the construction cost of the New Hogan Dam, excluding
recreation features. Under the terms of a side agreement, the payment of all obligations under the Bureau contract
is split between the two districts, whereby Stockton-East Water District is responsible for 43.5% of the
repayments and Calaveras County Water District is responsible for 56.5% of the payments. The agreement
required the Calaveras County Water District to make annual payments based on a variable computation to
Stockton-East Water District through 2010 with no interest. The unpaid balance at September 2010 began to bear
interest at 4.5%. Annual principal payments range from $54,279 to $54,680 and annual interest payments range
from $2,443 to $17,206 through June 30, 2024. The remaining balance on the contract at June 30, 2017, is
$435,528.

The contract also requires the District to make payments to Stockton-East Water District for the Calaveras County

Water District's share of expenses for operations, maintenance, replacements and contract administration. These
costs are expensed as incurred.

30



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30,2017

NOTE D — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Umpgua Bank Pension Loan: On March 28, 2012, the District obtained a loan from Umpqua Bank for $1,974,792
in order to pay off its side-fund with CalPERS in the same amount. The side fund represented the District’s
unfunded pension liability when the District joined a CalPERS cost-sharing pension plan. The loan is paid in
monthly payments of $26,051 including interest at 2.9%, maturing on April 1, 2019. The loan is secured by a
pledge of two certificates of deposit in the amount of $635,532 at June 30, 2017, maturing by 2018 and 2019.

Description of Public Financing Authority Fund Debt:

U.S. Department of Agriculture Bonds: On June 16, 2016, the Calaveras County Water District Public Financing
Authority issued Series 2016 Water Enterprise Revenue Bonds with a borrowing limit of $2,622,000 to assist in
the funding of the Ebbetts Pass Reach 3A Pipeline Replacement Project. The Bonds will be paid solely from
installment sale payments made from the District’s net water system revenues to purchase the project assets. The
bonds will be paid annually each September 1 in principal amounts ranging from $42,700 to $99,500 and semi-
annual interest payments ranging from $1,119 to $28,803 at 2.25% from September 1, 2017 to September 1, 2055.

The annual requirements to amortize the outstanding loans and notes payable at June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Years ending Water Fund Sewer Fund Public Financing Authority Fund
June 30 Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principat Interest Total
2018 $ 1,325,683 $ 107988 § 1,433,671 $ 557,780 § 39,753 § 597,533 $ 42,700 3 57,819 $ 100,519
2019 1,317,894 35,841 1,353,735 481,015 27,788 508,803 43,700 57,543 101,243
2020 1,177,420 23,725 1,201,145 396,594 17,828 414,422 44,700 56,548 101,248
2021 1,202,091 13,594 1,215,685 404,903 8,879 413,782 45,700 55,531 101,231
2022 40,463 5,449 45,912 14,217 1,915 16,132 46,700 54,492 101,192
2023-2027 119,975 5,436 125,411 42,152 1,910 44,062 249,600 256,043 505,643
2028-2032 278,900 226,344 505,244
2033-2037 311,800 193,095 504,895
2038-2042 348,400 156,049 504,449
2043-2047 i 389,600 114,575 504,175
2048-2052 435,300 68,226 503,526
2053-2056 384.900 17619 402,519

$ 5183526 § 192033 _$ 5375559 S 1896661 S 98073 § 1994734 $ 2622000 S 1313884 S 3935884

Pledged Revenues: The District has pledged future Water Fund and Sewer (wastewater) Fund revenues, net of
specified operating expenses, to repay each of its Water Fund, Sewer Fund and Public Financing Authority loans
and bonds as described above. Proceeds from the loans and bonds were used to fund certain water and sewer
improvements, to purchase capital assets or refund certain prior debt issuances as described above. The loans and
bonds are payable through September 1, 2055. Annual principal and interest on the loans and bonds are expected to
be 75% or less (60% or less for the Vac-Con truck loan) of net revenues as required by the loan and bond covenants.
Total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the loans and bonds are reported in the “Total” column for the
Water Fund and Sewer Fund on the table above. Total principal and interest paid on all debt payable from net
revenues in the Water and Sewer Funds was $2,212,608 and $651,239, respectively, and total water and sewer
system net revenues were $4,941,696 and $1,515,533 for the year ended June 30, 2017. At June 30, 2017, the
District’s total water and sewer system net revenues were 223% and 233% of debt service payments, respectively, as
described in the debt service coverage ratio calculation in the Other Supplementary Information section of the
financial statements.

31



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE E —~ INTERNAL LOAN

On January 11, 2012, the Board of Directors approved a loan of $3,000,000 from certain water and sewer expansion
funds to pay for the construction of the District’s operations headquarters. This resulted in an internal loan of
$1,970,000 from the Sewer Fund to the Water Fund at June 30, 2017. The internal loan will be repaid over ten years
at an interest rate of 2.5% or the weighted average of the District's current return on investments each year,
whichever is higher. The internal loan will be repaid on an "interest only" basis for the first five years and then
principal payments of $645,741 will be made each year thereafter in addition to yearly interest payments. On June
30, 2012, the Board of Directors approved a loan from the District’s Reserve Fund to cover debt service.

As part of the fiscal year 2017/18 budget adoption (June 28, 2017), the Board approved delaying the start of the
principal pay down one year (to fiscal year 2018/19), which extends the “interest only” period to six years. Thus,
the revised term will be eleven years, including six years with interest only payments and five years with principal
and interest payments.

On June 13, 2012, the Board of Directors approved a loan from the District’s Reserve fund to cover debt service
payments for the Jenny Lind Water Expansion Fund Loan. The outstanding loan balance as of June 30, 2017 was
$1,507,735. This resulted in an internal loan of $383,015 from the Sewer Fund to the Water Fund at June 30, 2017.
The Jenny Lind Water Expansion Fund debt service obligation continues through fiscal year 2017/18, at which time
additional internal loan funds may be necessary. The internal loan is non-interest bearing and will be repaid from
new connection fees from the Jenny Lind service area.

NOTE F — INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund balances at June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Due from other funds Due to other funds Amount
Water Fund Sewer Fund § 716,110
Public Financing Authority 346,633
Total due to/from $ 1,062,743

Due from/to other funds typically result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfiund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, (3) payments
between funds are made, or (4) revenue earned by a fund is not received until just after the end of the fiscal year.
The amount the Sewer Fund owed to the Water Fund represents a cash deficit subsidized by the Water Fund, which
does not bear interest. The Sewer Fund has not demonstrated the ability to repay the interfund borrowing within one
year of the financial statement date. The District is reviewing possible funding solutions to this operating deficit.
The amount the Public Financing Authority Fund owed the Water Fund was related to construction in process paid
by the Water Fund on the Public Financing Authority Fund’s behalf until a U.S. Department of Agriculture grant for
eligible expenditures related to the Ebbetts Pass Pipeline Project is received. The Public Financing Authority Fund’s
due from/to balance is anticipated to be repaid within the next fiscal year.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2017 were as follows:

Fund Receiving Transfer Fund Making Transfer Amount
Water Fund Public Financing Authority 3 2,718
Public Financing Authority Fund Water Fund 16,188
Total interfund transfers 3 18,906

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the funds
that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the Funds collecting
the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due and (3) subsidize operating losses.

32



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE G —~ SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT DEBT

The District acts as agent for the bondholders of five of the nine special assessment districts in the District’s service
area. Each of these special assessment districts has issued bonds to finance improvements within the related district.
The bonds are secured solely by liens on real property in the related assessment district. Calaveras County collects
special assessments from the property owners in these special assessment districts. The special assessments
collected are forwarded to the District, which directs payment to the bondholders through the designated paying
agent. The District is not obligated in any manner in the event of default of this debt, which is not included in the
District's financial statements. The outstanding principal amounts of these special assessment bonds at June 30,
2017, were as follows:

District Amount
Westpoint Acres #3A 3 27,000
Arnold Sewer #954 A/B 147,000
Saddle Creek Refinance 2001 2,015,000
Dal.ee/Cassidy 795,000
Fly-In Acres 1,840,000

Total _§ 4,824,000

Additionally, the La Contenta Assessment District (AD 604) remains in default/foreclosure. The District will
continue to act as the agent for La Contenta as foreclosure counsel works with the remaining three delinquent
property owners. One property was sold in November 2016 by the Calaveras County Treasurer-Tax Collector in a
Public Auction for non-payment of property taxes. The County notified the District that there are excess proceeds
available after the sale and the District is in the process of claiming excess proceeds. The other two properties are in
foreclosure and have had summary judgements filed against them. At this time the value of the properties (both
unimproved) are significantly less than the lien amounts.

NOTE H - NET POSITION
Net Position: Net position is categorized as the net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.
Net Investment in Capital Assets — This category groups all capital assets into one component of net position.

Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are aftributable to the acquisition,
construction or improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

Restricted Net Position — This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors,
laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. Net position restricted for expansion and construction comsisted of unspent capital
renovation and replacement (R&R) and expansion fee revenues, offset by liabilities recorded at year-end.

Unrestricted Net Position — This category represents net position not restricted for any project or other purpose.

Designations of Unrestricted Net Position: Designations of unrestricted net position may be imposed by the
Board of Directors to reflect future spending plans or concerns about the availability of future resources.
Designations may be modified, amended or removed by Board action. They are reported as part of the District’s
unrestricted net position.



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE H—NET POSITION (Continued)

Designations of unrestricted net position consisted of the following designations limited to the amount of
unrestricted net position available to designate in each fund and the amounts as approved by the Board of Directors
at June 30, 2017:

Limited to Unrestricted Net Position As Approved
Public Public
Financing Financing
Water Fund Sewer Fund _Authority Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Authority Fund
Designated:
90 Day Emergency Operating Reserve $ 2,261,222 $ 2,960,000 $ 1,040,000
Water Rights Reserve 3,000,000 3,000,000
CIP Cash Flow Reserve 1,258,000 1,258,000 442,000
Special Projects Reserve 984381 984,381 345,863
Total designated 7,503,603
Undesignated $ (1,352,045) $ (43,619) § 8202381 $ 1827863 § -
Total unrestricted net position $ 7,503,603 8 (1,352,045) § (43,619)

NOTE I -PENSION PLAN

Plan Description: All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the District’s
cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan (the Plan) administered by the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The District participates in the Miscellaneous Risk Pool and the
following rate plans:

@ Miscellaneous Plan First Tier

& Miscellaneous Plan Second Tier
® PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan

Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and Board resolution. CalPERS issues publicly
available reports that include a full description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS website at www.calpers.ca.gov.

Benefits Provided: CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years
of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible
to retire at age 50 (52 for PEPRA Miscellaneous Plan) with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible
for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is the following: the Optional Settlement
2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each rate plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees® Retirement Law. Plan provisions and benefits in effect for the year ended June 30, 2017 are
summarized as follows:

PEPRA
Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Plan First Tier Plan Second Tier Plan
(Prior to (August 1,2012 to (On or after

Hire date August 1, 2012) December 31, 2012 January 1,2013)
Benefit formula (at full retirement) 2.7% @ 55 2.0% @ 60 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 50-63 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.00-2.70% 1.092%-2.418% 1.0%102.5%
Final average compensation period One year Three years Three years
Required employee contribution rates 7.945% 6.886% 6.250%
Required employer contribution rates 11.634% 7.159% 6.555%

34



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE I-PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

The first-tier rate plan is closed to all new participants while the second tier rate plan is closed to new members that
are not already CalPERS eligible participants.

Contributions: Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on
the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plans are determined annually on
an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined
rate and the contribution rate of employees. For the year ended June 30, 2017 the employer contributions for the
Plan (all rate plans combined) were $946,214, including the contribution for the employer unfunded accrued
liability.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions: As of June
30, 2017 the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability of the Plan
(all rate plans combined) of $8,797,338.

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability of the Plan as of June 30, 2017 is measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total pension
liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2015 rolled forward to June 30, 2016 using standard update procedures as required by GASB Statement No. 68.
The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially
determined. The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2017 was as
follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.25186%
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.25324%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00138%

For the year ended June 30, 2017 the District recognized pension expense of $747,760. At June 30, the District
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the pension plan from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 946,214
Differences between actual and expected experience 30,588 $ (7,008)
Changes in assumptions {289,386)
Differences between the employer's contributions
and the employer's proportionate share of contributions 227 (65,339)
Change in employer's proportion 556,500 (23,352)
Net differences between projected and actual earnings
on plan investments 1,506,158
Total $ 3,039,687 $ (385,085

35



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE I -PENSION PLAN (Continued)

The $946,214 reported as deferred outflows of resources at June 30, 2017 related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018.
Other amounts reported as net deferred outflows (inflows) of resources related to pensions will be recognized as
pension expense as follows as of June 30, 2017:

Year Ended
June 30
2017 $ 317,678
2018 317,781
2019 682,817
2020 390,112

Total $ 1,708,388

Actuarial Assumptions: The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations for each of the rate
plans were determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2015
Measurement Date June 30, 2016
Actuarial Cost Method Entry-Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll
Asset Valuation Method Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.65%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 2.75%
Projected Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service (1)
Investment Rate of Return 7.65%
Mortality Derived using CalPERS Membership

Data for all Funds (2)

(1) Varying by service, including inflation.

(2) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data.
The mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more
details on this table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for fiscal years 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, mortality and retirement rates.
Further details of the Experience Study can be found on the CalPERS website under Forms and Publications.

Discount Rate: The discount rates used by CalPERS to measure the total pension liability was 7.65% in the June 30,
2015 valuation for each rate plan. To determine whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of
a discount rate for each rate plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that
would be different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested plans are
projected to run out of assets. Therefore, the current discount rate is adequate and the use of the municipal bond rate
calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount rate will be applied to all plans in the Public
Employees Retirement Fund (PERF). The stress test results are presented in a detailed report that can be obtained
from the CalPERS website.

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset/Liability Management (ALM)

review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any changes to the discount rate will require
CalPERS Board action and proper stakeholder outreach.

36



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE I - PENSION PLAN (Cortinued)

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term
market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’
asset classes, expected compound returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11-
60 years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term,
the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the
single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one
calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equivalent to the
single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class for each of the rate plans as of the
measurement date of June 30, 2016. The rate of return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied
to determine the discount rate and asset allocation. These rates of return are net of administrative expenses.

New Strategic ~ Real Return Real Return

Asset Class Allocation  Years1-10(a) Years 11-+(b)
Global Equity 51.0% 5.25% 5.71%
Global Debt Securities 20.0% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Assets 6.0% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 10.0% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 10.0% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 2.0% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 1.0% (0.55)% (1.05%
Total 100.0%

(a) An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period.

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate: The following
presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using the discount rate
for the Plan, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.65%) (7.65%) (8.65%)
Net Pension Liability $ 13,443,327 $ 8,797,338 $ 4,957,659

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Payable to the Pension Plan: At June 30, 2017 the District had $55,637 of outstanding contributions payable to the
Plan.

37



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE J - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Plan Description: The District’s other postemployment benefits (OPEB) plan (the Plan) is an agent-multiple
employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS). PARS
maintains the Plan’s assets in a trust fund that complies with Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code and provides
administration of benefits and investment services. The Plan assets are invested by PARS together with assets of
other participating employers. The Plan provides medical, dental and vision insurance benefits to eligible retirees
and surviving spouses. Employees who retire directly from the District and their dependents are eligible for the
District paid benefits if they meet the following criteria:

Medical Post Retirement Benefits: Employees hired by the District on or before July 31, 2001 who retire from the
District with a minimum of five (5) years of service credit for work performed at the District may elect to be
provided post-employment medical insurance coverage.

Employees hired by the District on or after August 1, 2001 who retire from the District with a minimum of five (5)
years of service at the District and ten (10) years of CalPERS service credit are eligible to be provided post-
employment medical coverage under the vesting schedule and provisions of Government Code 22893.

Dental and Vision Post Retirement Benefits: Employees hired on or before December 31, 2007 who retire from the
District with at least five (5) years of service at the District may elect to be provided post-employment dental and
vision coverage at no cost to the retiree.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2008 will not receive any post-employment dental or vision coverage.

The District’s Board of Directors establishes and amends benefit provisions. The Plan does not issue a separate
publicly available financial statement.

Funding Policy: Contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the Board of
Directors. The District contributes, at a minimum, a percentage of the weighted average cost of the four basic health
benefit plans that had the largest state enrollment in the previous benefit year. This percent is based upon each
participant's years of service according to the following scale:

Credited Years  Percentage of the Weighted

of Service Average Cost
Less than 10 0%

10 50%
11 55%
12 60%
13 65%
14 70%
15 75%
16 80%
17 85%
18 90%
19 95%

20 or more 100%

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the District made contributions of $1,155,593, including $543,585 for current
premiums and an additional contribution of $612,008 to prefund benefits. Plan members made no contributions.

38



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE J - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN (Continued)

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The District's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to
exceed thirty (30) years. The following table shows the amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the District's
net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution $ 746,759
Interest on net OPEB obligation 5,381
Adjustment to annual required contribution (5,301)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 746,839
Contributions made (1,155,593)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation (408,754)
Net OPEB obligation (asset), beginning of year (701,604)
Net OPEB obligation (asset), end of year $ (1,110,358)

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed, and the net OPEB obligation for
2017 and the two preceding years were as follows:

Percentage of Cumulative

Year Ended Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
June 30 OPEB Cost Contribution  Cost Contributed  Obligation (Asset)
2015 $ 694,543 $ 1,072,066 154.36% $ (301,249)
2016 720,212 1,120,567 155.59% (701,604)
2017 746,839 1,155,593 154.73% (1,110,358)

Funded Status and Funding Progress: As of July 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the funded status
of the Plan was as follows for the year ended June 30, 2017:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $ 11,427,106
Actuarial value of Plan assets 5,023,691
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 6403415
Funded ratio (actuarial value of Plan assets/AAL) 43.96%
Covered payroll $ 5,256,427
UAAL as percentage of covered payroll 121.82%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding status and progress, as shown
above, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined
amounts are subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the OPEB benefits provided

39



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE J - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN (Continued)

under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan are designed to
reflect a long-term perspective and include certain techniques used to reduce shori~term volatility in the actuarial
accrued liabilities and actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the July 2014 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions
included a 7.0% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is the expected long-term
investment return and a 3.25% inflation factor. The initial health care cost trend rates were 6.4% reduced by
decrements each year to an ultimate rate of 5.0% on January 1, 2021 and later. The dental cost trend rate was 4.0%
and the vision cost trend rate was 2.0% for all years. The unfunded actuarial accrued lability (UAAL) is being
amortized over thirty years on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2015 is 24 years.

NOTE K - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District participates in the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (JPIA), a
public entity risk pool of water agencies in California, for general, automobile, public officials errors and omissions
liability, property damage and business interruption coverage. Through its membership in the JPIA, the District is
provided with excess coverage for these items through commercial insurance. Loss contingency reserves
established by the JPIA are funded by contributions from member agencies. The District pays an annual premium to
the JPIA that includes its pro-rata share of excess insurance premiums, charges for pooled risk, claims adjusting and
legal costs, and administrative and other costs to operate the JPIA. Financial statements for the JPIA may be
obtained at 2100 Professional Drive, Roseville, California 95661-3700 or www.acwajpia.com.

The District’s self-insured retention levels and limits on coverage under the JPIA were as follows at June 30, 2016:

Commercial
Coverage ACWA/IPIA Insurance Deductible

General liability $ 5,000,000 $ 55,000,000 None
Auto liability 5,000,000 55,000,000 § 1,000
Public officials liability 5,000,000 55,000,000 None
Property damage, including buildings, personal

property, fixed equipment, mobile

equipment and other 100,000 150,000,000 1,000 to 50,000
Crime 100,000 160,000 1,000
Workers compensation 2,000,000 Statutory None
Employers liability 2,000,000 Statutory None

Settled claims have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years and no significant changes
or reductions in insurance coverage have occurred.

NOTE L — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The District had the following capital project commitments outstanding as of June 30, 2017:

Ebbetts Pass Reach 3A Pipeline Replacement $ 587,791
Ebbetts Pass Reach 1 Waterline Replacement 429,820
Total $ 1,017,611

40



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

June 30, 2017

NOTE L — COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

Grant Contingency: Amounts received or receivable under grant agreements are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the federal and state government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already
collected, could possibly need to be returned to the granting agency. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may
be disallowed by the grantors cannot be determined at this time, although the District expects such amounts, if any,
to be immaterial.

Legal Contingencies: A claim was filed by La Contenta Investors, Ltd. (La Contenta), a local golf course, against
the District where La Contenta claimed it is entitled to $1.8 million in sewer credits under a contract provision that
provides La Contenta with sewer credits in exchange for its use of recycled water for irrigation. If La Contenta
prevails in the claim, the District would be required to provide up to $1.8 million of credits for future sewer hookups
to the District’s system, less any credits previously exercised. Management does not believe La Contenta is due the
full $1.8 million of sewer credits.

Various other claims and suits are filed against the District in the normal course of business. Although the outcome
of these claims is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the District's management, after consultation with
counsel, the resolution of any claims outstanding will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of
the District.

NOTE M — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 9, 2017, the District’s Board of Directors approved a contract for design of the Copper Cove Wastewater
Lift Stations 8, 12, 13 and Force Main Bypass Project and Copper Cover Wastewater Lift Stations 15 and 16
renovations project in the amount of $3,999,500.

On August 23, 2017, the District’s Board of Directors approved the sale of the former administration building and
land to the Calaveras County Resource Conservation District for $1 due to the significant costs to comect the
building’s Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) deficiencies and asbestos contamination that made the
rehabilitation or demolition of the building cost prohibitive. This sale resulted in a loss of approximately $524,106.

On November 21, 2017, the District’s Board of Directors approved a contract for the Jenny Lind Water Plant
Pretreatment Project in the amount of $3,418,000, which will be 75% funded by a Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) grant. The project will result in the ability to pretreat water entering the Jenny Lind Water
Treatment Plant to remove debris resulting from the Butte Fire.

41



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE
NET PENSION LIABILITY - MISCELLANEOUS PLAN (UNAUDITED)

Last 10 Years
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.25186% 0.25186% 0.21557%
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ 8,797,338 § 6,909,619 3 5,327,739
Covered - Employee Payroll - Plan Measurement Date $ 5,155,786  § 4,776,189 % 4,868,194
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as Percentage of Covered Payroll 170.63% 144.67% 109.44%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 3 25,711,678  § 25,880,156 § 26,064,984
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 74.51% 78.93% 83.03%

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE PENSION PLAN - MISCELLANEOUS PLAN (UNAUDITED)

Last 10 Years
June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Contractually Required Contribution (Actuarially Determined) 3 946,214 3 535,436 % 725,590
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contributions 946,214 535,436 725,590
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 3 - 8 - 8 -
Covered - Employee Payroll - Employer Fiscal year $ 5,256,427 % 5,155,786 $ 4,776,189
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered - Employee Payroll 18.00% 10.39% 15.19%
Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date: June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014 June 30,2013
Measurement date: June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 June 30,2014
Investment Rate of Return and discount rate used to compute contribution rates 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%
Benefit Changes: There were no changes to benefit terms.
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates
Actuarial Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Amortization Method Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings is Amortized Straight-line Over 5 Years.
All Other Amounts are Amortized Straight-line Over Average Remaining Service Life of
Participants
Remaining Amortization Period Not Stated
Asset Valuation Method 5-year Smoothed Market
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases Varies depending on Entry Age and Service
Retirement Age 50-67 Years. Probabilities of Retirement are Based on the 2010 CalPERS Experience Study
for the Period 1997 to 2007,
Mortality CalPERS Specific Data from January 2014 Actuarial Experience Study for the Period 1997 to

2011 that Uses 20 Years of Mortality Improvements Using Society of Actuaries Scale BB.

Covered payroll in the first table above was revised in 2017 to be the covered payroll at the measurement date.

Omitted Years: GASB Statement No. 68 was Implemented During the Year Ended June 30, 2015. No information was Available Prior to this Date.
Future years will be reported prospectively as they become available,



SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE

CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

June 30, 2017

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN (UNAUDITED)

Unfunded

Actuarial Actuarial UAAL asa

Actuarial Accrued Accrued Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) © ((b-a)/c)
June 30, 2015 3,966,537 § 10,368,516 $§ 6,401,979 38.26% $ 4,793,906 133.54%
June 30, 2016 4,471,207 10,880,088 6,408,881 41.10% 5,155,786 124.30%
June 30, 2017 5,023,691 11,427,106 6,403,415 43.96% 5,256,427 121.82%

43



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT AGENCY FUND

June 30, 2017
(With Prior Year Data for Comparative Purposes Only)

West Point Arnold New Hogan/ Lake
Acres Wilseyville Sewer La Contenta Tulloch
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 19,726 $ 5 $ 93,826 $ 87,740 $ 1
Interest receivable 26 122 114
Tax proceeds receivable 12,938
Due from County of Calaveras 730 1,620
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
with fiscal agents 2
TOTAL ASSETS § 20,482 § 5 $ 95568 % 100,794 % 1
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 372 3 959 & 423
Notes payable $ 10,742
Due to other governments 3 5 (10,741)
Due to bond holders 20,110 94,609 100,371
TOTAL LIABILITIES § 20482 % 5 § 95568 § 100,794 § 1

44




Totals for

Comparative Purposes Only

Saddle DalLee/ Fly in
Creek Cassidy Acres Wallace
Fund Fund Fund Fund 2017 2016
$ 514,358 $ 71,215 $ 99,465 $ 207,116 § 1,093,452 $ 1,093,033
667 92 129 269 1,419 781
12,938
252 3,646 6,764 2,345 15,357 21,262
317,014 68,123 136,723 521,862 519,719
$ 832,291 3 143,076 $ 243,081 $ 209,730 § 1,645,028 3 1,634,795
$ 2,045 $ 592§ 575 % 4,966 $ 1,141
10,742 10,741
209,155 198,419 247,794
830,246 $ 143,076 242,489 1,430,901 1,375,119
$ 832,291 $ 143,076 $ 243,081 $ 209,730 § 1,645,028 $ 1,634,795

45



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO - WATER FUND

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
REVENUES
Water operating revenues $ 7,833,129 $ 7,533,019
Property taxes 2,028,441 1,989,031
Investment income 173,643 133,621
Expansion Fees 541,297 1,285,255
Power sales 569,956 423,697
Capital R&R fees 3,216,530 3,117,700
Other income 146,804 47,009
TOTAL REVENUES 14,509,800 14,529,332
EXPENSES
Total Operating Expenses 11,979,226 11,097,419
Less: Depreciation (2,606,062) (2,612,334)
Transfers (in) (2,718) (151,945)
Transfers out 16,188 55,129
TOTAL EXPENSES 9,386,634 8,388,269
NET REVENUES 5,123,166 6,141,063
Debt Service Payments * 1,846,745 1,830,334
Debt Coverage Ratio - Actual 2.77 3.36
Required Ratio - 2013 Refunding, 2014 Water Revenue Loans and 2016 1.25 1.25

Revenue Bonds

Annual Debt Service Payments

* Includes all debt payments, including Compass Bank (Series 2013 Refunding Water Revenue Loan), Umpqua

Bank (Series 2014 Water Revenue Loan) and USDA (Series 2016 Water Enterprise Revenue Bonds).

NET REVENUES § 5,123,166

$ 6,141,063

Debt Service Payments (ALL)** 2,212,608 2,294,084
Debt Coverage Ratio - Actual 2.32 2.68
Required Ratio - Wallace WestAmerica Loan 1.15 1.15
Required Ratio - 2013 Refunding, 2014 Water Revenue Loans and 2016 1.25 1.25

Revenue Bonds

** Includes all debt payments.

46



CALAVERAS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO - SEWER FUND

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016

2017 2016
REVENUES
Sewer operating revenues $ 4,324,363 $ 4,288,048
Property taxes 712,695 698,848
Investment income 107,864 88,668
Expansion Fees 161,572 135,648
Power sales 199,532 148,866
Capital R&R fees 1,172,164 1,166,444
Other income 56,170 18,788
TOTAL REVENUES 6,734,360 6,545,310
EXPENSES
Total Operating Expenses 6,514,946 6,380,387
Less: Depreciation (1,220,860) (1,227,377)
Transfers (in) (39,474)
Transfers out 156,495
TOTAL EXPENSES 5,294,086 5,270,031
NET REVENUES 1,440,274 1,275,279
Debt Service Payments * 397,011 396,935
Debt Coverage Ratio - Actual 3.63 3.21
Required Ratio - 2013 Refunding and 2014 Sewer Revenue Loans 1.25 1.25

Annual Debt Service Payments

* Includes payments on Compass Bank (Series 2013 Refunding Sewer Revenue Loan), plus parity debt from

Umpgqua Bank (Series 2014 Sewer Revenue Loan).

NET REVENUES § 1,440,274 § 1,275,279
Debt Service Payments (ALL)** 651,239 488,836
Debt Coverage Ratio - Actual 2.21 2.61
Required Ratio - Wallace WestAmerica Loan 1.15 1.15
Required Ratio - 2013 Refunding and 2014 Sewer Revenue Loans 1.25 1.25
Required Ratio - Vac-Con Truck Loan 1.40 1.40

** Includes all debt payments.

47



